
City Council Agenda                  June 22, 2015 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

1 

 

  

AGENDA 
MONDAY, JUNE 22, 2015 – 7:00 P.M. 

 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Matt Beekman  
 
ROLL CALL:  Mayor Matt Beekman 
    Mayor Pro Tem Jeramy Young 
    Councilmember Jill Silva 
    Councilmember George Carr 
    Councilmember Harold Hill 
    
FLAG SALUTE:  Mayor Matt Beekman 
 
INVOCATION:  Hughson Ministerial Association  

 
   

1. PUBLIC BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR (No Action Can Be Taken): 
 

Members of the audience may address the City Council on any item of interest to the public 
pertaining to the City and may step to the podium, state their name and city of residence for the 
record (requirement of name and city of residence is optional) and make their presentation. 
Please limit presentations to five minutes. Since the City Council cannot take action on matters 
not on the agenda, unless the action is authorized by Section 54954.2 of the Government Code, 
items of concern, which are not urgent in nature can be resolved more expeditiously by 
completing and submitting to the City Clerk a “Citizen Request Form” which may be obtained 
from the City Clerk.  

 
2. PRESENTATIONS:   
 

 

3. CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 
All items listed on the Consent Calendar are to be acted upon by a single action of the City 
Council unless otherwise requested by an individual Councilmember for special consideration.  
Otherwise, the recommendation of staff will be accepted and acted upon by roll call vote. 

 

CITY OF HUGHSON  
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA 

 



City Council Agenda                  June 22, 2015 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

2 

 

3.1: Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of June 08, 2015. 
 
3.2: Approve the Warrants Register. 

 
3.3: Review and Approve the City of Hughson Treasurer's Report: Investment 

Portfolio Report for April 2015. 
 
3.4:   Approve the use of Community Enhancement Funds for the purchase of 

automated external defibrillators for City facilities. 
 
3.5   Approve City of Hughson 2015/2016 Investment Policy. 
 
 

ADJOURN TO THE CITY OF HUGHSON SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE 
HUGHSON REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING                                                                                              
 
RECONVENE TO THE CITY OF HUGHSON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
  

4. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:     
 
 

 

5. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING:   
 

. 
 

6. NEW BUSINESS:  
 

6.1: Adopt Resolution No. 2015-19, declaring the City Council’s intent to levy 
and collect assessments for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 for the City of 
Hughson Landscape and Lighting Districts (LLD) and Benefit Assessment 
Districts (BAD) and to set the Public Hearing for the July 13, 2015 City 
Council meeting 

 
6.2: Adopt Resolution No. 2015-20, Adopting Tax-Advantaged Bonds Post-

Issuance Compliance Procedures 
 
 

7. CORRESPONDENCE:   
 

  

8. COMMENTS: 
 

8.1: Staff Reports and Comments: (Information Only – No Action) 



City Council Agenda                  June 22, 2015 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

3 

  
City Manager:            
 
City Clerk: 
 
Community Development Director: 
  
Director of Finance: 
 
Police Services:  
   
City Attorney: 
 

8.2: Council Comments: (Information Only – No Action) 
 

8.3: Mayor’s Comments: (Information Only – No Action) 
 

9. CLOSED SESSION TO DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING:   
 

9.1:   PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54957:  
 
Title:  City Manager 

 

10. REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION:   
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

WAIVER WARNING 
 
If you challenge a decision/direction of the City Council in court, you may be limited to raising only 
those issues you or someone else raised at a public hearing(s) described in this Agenda, or in written 
correspondence delivered to the City of Hughson at or prior to, the public hearing(s).           



City Council Agenda                  June 22, 2015 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

4 

UPCOMING EVENTS: 
 

June 20  Hughson’s Concert Series: Downtown, Hughson Avenue, 6:00-9:00 p.m. 

June 20  Hughson Fire Protection District Centennial, Charles St., TBD  

June 22  City Council Meeting, City Hall Chambers, 7:00 p.m. 

June 22  Economic Development Committee Meeting @ City Hall 7 P.M 

June 25  Hughson Farmer’s Market, Downtown Hughson, Charles St, 4:00-8:00 p.m. 

July 3  City Hall Closed  

July 4  Independence Day 

 

 

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 
 

DATE:          June 18, 2015 TIME:                     5:00pm     

NAME:       Marilyn Castaneda   TITLE:                    Management Intern 

              
 

 
 
 

Notice Regarding Non-English Speakers:  
 

Pursuant to California Constitution Article III, Section IV, establishing English as the official language for 
the State of California, and in accordance with California Code of Civil Procedures Section 185, which 
requires proceedings before any State Court to be in English, notice is hereby given that all proceedings 
before the City of Hughson City Council shall be in English and anyone wishing to address the Council is 
required to have a translator present who will take an oath to make an accurate translation from any 
language not English into the English language. 
 

 

 

RULES FOR ADDRESSING CITY COUNCIL 
 
Members of the audience who wish to address the City Council are requested to complete one of the 
forms located on the table at the entrance of the Council Chambers and submit it to the City Clerk. Filling 
out the card is voluntary.  

 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT/CALIFORNIA BROWN ACT 
NOTIFICATION FOR THE CITY OF HUGHSON 

 
This Agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability; as required by 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Section 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (California 
Government Code Section 54954.2).    
 
Disabled or Special needs Accommodation:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons 

requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to participate in the meeting and/or if  you need 
assistance to attend or participate in a City Council meeting, please contact  the City Clerk’s office at (209) 883-4054. 
Notification at least 48-hours prior to the meeting will assist the City Clerk in assuring that reasonable 
accommodations are made to provide accessibility to the meeting.  



City Council Agenda                  June 22, 2015 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

5 

 
 
General Information: The Hughson City Council meets in the Council Chambers on 

the second and fourth Mondays of each month at 7:00 p.m., 
unless otherwise noticed.  

 
Council Agendas: The City Council agenda is now available for public review at 

the City’s website at www.hughson.org  and City Clerk's Office, 
7018 Pine Street, Hughson, California on the Friday, prior to the 
scheduled meeting. Copies and/or subscriptions can be 
purchased for a nominal fee through the City Clerk’s Office.   

 
Questions:             Contact the City Clerk at (209) 883-4054 

http://www.hughson.org/


City Council Minutes                   June 8, 2015 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

1 

 

  
MINUTES 

MONDAY, JUNE 8, 2015 – 7:00 P.M. 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Pro Tem Young 
 
ROLL CALL:  
  

Present:  Mayor Pro Tem Jeramy Young 
    Councilmember Jill Silva 
    Councilmember George Carr 
    Councilmember Harold Hill 
  

Absent:  Mayor Matt Beekman 
 

Staff Present: Raul L. Mendez, City Manager  
    Daniel J. Schroeder, City Attorney  
    Jaylen French, Community Development Director  

Shannon Esenwein, Finance Director 
Margret M. Souza, Budget/Finance Consultant  
Lisa Whiteside. Finance Manager 
Larry Seymour, Chief of Police Services 
Sam Rush, Public Works Superintendent 

    Juan Padilla, City Treasurer 
    Marilyn Castaneda, Management Intern 
 
    
FLAG SALUTE:  Mayor Pro Tem Young 
 
INVOCATION:  Hughson Ministerial Association  

 
   
1. PUBLIC BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR (No Action Can Be Taken): 
 
No Public Comments. 

 

CITY OF HUGHSON  
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA 

 



City Council Minutes                   June 8, 2015 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

2 

 
2. PRESENTATIONS:   
 

2.1: A Proclamation of the Hughson City Council Declaring June as Disability 
Awareness Month. 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Young presented the Proclamation and read it aloud. Shannon 
Anderson, Special Event Coordinator from Society of Disabilities, was present to 
accept the award. 
 
Shannon Anderson thanked the City Council and announced the statewide effort 
to get all of California to Proclaim June as Disability Awareness Month.   
 

 
3. CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 
All items listed on the Consent Calendar are to be acted upon by a single action of the City 
Council unless otherwise requested by an individual Councilmember for special consideration.  
Otherwise, the recommendation of staff will be accepted and acted upon by roll call vote. 

 
3.1: Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of May 26, 2015. 
 
3.2: Approve the Warrants Register. 

 
3.3: Review and Approve the City of Hughson Treasurer's Report: Investment 

Portfolio Report for March 2015. 
 
3.4: Waive the Second Reading and Adopt Ordinance No. 2015-03, an 

Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Hughson, Amending Title 8, 
Chapter 8.30, Section 130 of the Hughson Municipal Code – Urban Water 
Quality Control. 

                                                                                               
3.5: Waive the Second Reading and Adopt Ordinance No. 2015-05, an 

Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Hughson, Amending the 
Hughson Municipal Code (HMC) Chapter 17.03.060 – Parking. 

 
3.6: Waive the Second Reading and Adopt Ordinance No. 2015-06, an 

Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Hughson, Amending Hughson 
Municipal Code Title 13 Chapter 13.04.340 – Water Conservation and 
Prohibition on Water Waste.   

 
YOUNG/SILVA 4-0 (BEEKMAN - ABSENT) motion passes to approve the Consent 
Calendar as presented.  
 
 
4. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: None. 
  



City Council Minutes                   June 8, 2015 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

3 

AJOURN TO THE CITY OF HUGHSON MAY 26, 2015 ADJOURNED MEETING 
PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54955. –7:30 P.M 
 
RECONVENE TO THE CITY OF HUGHSON CITY COUNCIL MEETING. –7:35 P.M  
 
 
Upon the reconvening of the City Council Meeting, Director French presented the 
update on this item. A request to remove Ordinance No. 2015-04 was made and a 
new request will be made at a further date.  
 
No Action was taken.   
 

 
5. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING:   None. 
 

 
6. NEW BUSINESS:  
 

 6.1: Review and Approve the City of Hughson’s Fiscal Year 2015-2016 
Preliminary Budget and Related Actions and Adopt Resolution No. 2015-
17, Amending the Salary Range Schedule for Designated Management 
Classifications and the Classification Plan for City of Hughson Employees. 

 
Margaret M. Souza, Budget/Finance Consultant, and Shannon Esenwein, Director 
of Finance, presented the Staff Report on this item. Ms. Souza thoroughly 
reviewed the information contained in the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Preliminary 
Budget and answered questions of the Council.  
 
Director French added comment on the restructuring of staffing positions in the 
Public Works Department.  The recommended change will add structure to the 
Department. 
 
City Manager Mendez, made comment regarding that reorganization and its 
consistency with his vision of investing in the current staff who are dedicated and 
capable.  
  
Council Member Silva and Mayor Pro Tem Young thanked staff for all their hard 
work and providing detailed information. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Young opened Public Hearing at 7:38 P.M. There were no Public 
Comments. The Public Hearing was closed at 7:39 P.M. 
 
Hill/YOUNG 4-0 (BEEKMAN - ABSENT) motion passes to Approve the City of 
Hughson’s Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Preliminary Budget and Related Actions and 
Adopt Resolution No. 2015-17, Amending the Salary Range Schedule for 



City Council Minutes                   June 8, 2015 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

4 

Designated Management Classifications and the Classification Plan for City of 
Hughson Employees. 
 

 
6.2 Adopt Resolution No. 2015-18, Restricting Irrigation of Outdoor 

Landscapes to No More than Two Days Per Week, a Measure Necessary 
for the Immediate Protection of Health and Safety and for Compliance with 
State Law. 

 
City Attorney Schroeder presented the Staff Report on this item. He also reviewed 
the information regarding the recommendation to implement stricter watering 
guidelines in light of recent State actions and answered questions from Council. 
City Attorney Schroeder recommended that the motion also include that the 
effective date be 30 days from June 8, 2015 to give City staff the ability to get 
conduct outreach and education to let the public adapt to the new watering days 
and times.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Young opened Public Hearing at 7:45 P.M. There were no public 
comments. The Public Hearing was closed at 7:46 P.M.  
 
YOUNG/CARR 4-0 (BEEKMAN - ABSENT) motion passes to Adopt Resolution No. 
2015-18, restricting irrigation of outdoor landscapes to no more than two days per 
week, a measure necessary for immediate Protection of Health and Safety and for 
compliance with State Law.  
 
 
7. CORRESPONDENCE: NONE.  
 
  
8. COMMENTS: 
 

8.1: Staff Reports and Comments: (Information Only – No Action) 
  

City Manager:   City Manager Mendez provided an 
update on the success of the first 
installment of Hughson’s Concert 
Series. He also shared with the City 
Council and public that the Hughson 
Farmers’ Market was this upcoming 
Thursday, the Hughson Fire 
Protection District’s Centennial was 
scheduled for the weekend of June 
20-21, 2015, that the Proposition 218 
Notice went out last week and City 
Hall was receiving feedback from 
residents and that the associated 



City Council Minutes                   June 8, 2015 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

5 

workshops for residents will be held 
on June 17 and July 8. Lastly, he 
noted that the City will be 
transitioning to Gilton Solid Waste 
Management later in the month and 
that they will be present at the 
Farmers’ Market to do additional 
education and outreach on the 
services to be provided.              

 
City Clerk: 
 
Community Development Director:  Community Development 

Director French shared that 
they had moved the item for 
the City Council’s 
consideration of the annual 
assessment districts to the 
next regular meeting with the 
public hearing still scheduled 
for July 13, 2015, that the Tully 
Road Project will be pushed 
back a week but should still be 
finished early September, and 
provided an update on the 
Hughson water tower graffiti 
and plans to include graffiti 
and vandalism prevention 
measures. Community 
Development French also 
shared that additional 
amenities for toddlers had 
been installed at the Starn Park 
playground. Lastly, he 
provided an update on the 
Farmers’ Market positive 
feedback from residents and 
new elements for future 
Farmers’ Markets.     

Director of Finance:   
 
Police Services: Chief Larry Seymour provided the 

City Council with the Crime Statistic 
Report from 05/11/2015 - 06/07/2015. 
    

 



City Council Minutes                   June 8, 2015 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

6 

City Attorney: Attorney Schroeder announced that 
he would be absent at the City 
Council regular meeting on June 22, 
2015 and that Deputy City Attorney 
Monica Streeter would be in 
attendance on his behalf.   
  

 
8.2: Council Comments: (Information Only – No Action) 
 

Council member Hill provided updates on his attendance at the Hughson 
Farmers’ Market as well as the Hughson’s Concert Series. 
 
Council member Silva provided and update on her attendance at the Hughson 
Farmers Market and a Stanislaus Council of Government meeting 
 
Council member Carr updated the rest of the City Council and the public on the 
increase in mosquitoes in the region in comparison to last year. He also 
instructed the public to call Turlock Mosquito Abatement District at (209) 634-
1234 for any services needed or to report issues. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Young thanked staff for the detailed Preliminary Budget. He also 
mentioned the increase in activity in the downtown area and thanked staff for 
promoting Hughson in such a positive way.   

 
8.3: Mayor’s Comments: (Information Only – No Action) 
 
 

9. CLOSED SESSION TO DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING:  8:04 P.M  
 

9.1:   PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54957:  
 
Title:  City Manager 

 
10. REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION: 
 
No reportable action was taken. 
 
ADJOURNMENT:  
 
CARR/HILL motion passes to adjourn the meeting at 8:05 P.M. 
 
 
 
 



City Counc i l Minutes June 8, 2015 

MATT BEEKMAN, MAYOR 

DOMINIQUE SPINALE ROMO, CITY CLERK 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk's counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 



 

 

  
Meeting Date: June 22, 2015 
Subject: Approval of the City Council Minutes 
Presented By:  Marilyn Castaneda, Management Intern 
 
Approved By: ____________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
  
Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of June 8, 2015. 
 
Background and Overview: 
 
The draft minutes of the June 8, 2015 meeting are prepared for the Council’s 
review.  
  
 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF HUGHSON AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.1 
SECTION 3:  CONSENT CALENDAR    



 

 

`  
Meeting Date: June 22, 2015 
Subject: Approval of Warrants Register 
Enclosure: Warrants Register 
Presented By:  Shannon Esenwein, Director of Finance  
 
Approved By: ____________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve the Warrants Register as presented.     
 
Background and Overview: 
 
The warrants register presented to the City Council is a listing of all expenditures 
paid from June 9, 2015 through June 18, 2015. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
There are reductions in various funds for payment of expenses. 
 
 
 

 

CITY OF HUGHSON AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.2 
SECTION 3:  CONSENT CALENDAR 



REPORT.: Jun 18 15 Thursday 

RUN.. . . : Jun 18 15 Time: 15:26 

Run By.: MARTHA SERRATO 

Ci tyof Hughson 

Cash Disbursement Detail Report 

Check Usting for 06-15 Bank Account.: 0100 

Check Check 

Number Date 

Vendor 

Number Name 

46551 6/9/2015 BNSOO BNSF RAILWAY C O M P A N Y 

46552 6/9/2015 BNSOO BNSF RAILWAY C O M P A N Y 

46553 6/12/2015 CAR14 CARILLO, IRENE FRANCES 

PAGE: 001 

ID#: PY-DP 

CTL : HUG 

Net Payment Information-

Amount Invo ice* Description 

5,400.00 B50609 

5,400.00 C50609 

250.00 B50612 

CONTRACT W/BNSF FOR WORK 

UNDER RAIL UNE 

CONTRACT W/BNSF FOR WORK 

UNDER RAIL UNE 

HUGHSON'S CONCERT SERIES 

DOWNTOWN BAND PAYMENT 

46554 6/12/2015 KEMOO KEMP, RAYLENE 250.00 B50612 HUGHSON'S CONCERT SERIES 

DOWNTOWN BAND PAYMENT 

46555 6/12/2015 NELOO NELSON, STEVE 

46556 6/12/2015 OPEOl OPERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL 

46557 6/12/2015 ROD08 RODRIGUEZ, CLAUDIA 

46558 6/12/2015 SOLOl SOLAR CITY 

200.00 B50612 

329.00 B50612 

235.00 B50612 

219.94 B50612 

PHOTOGRAPHY FOR HUGHSON'S 

CONCERT SERIES 

LOCAL UNION #3 DUES 

REFUND RENT-HALL CANCELL 

ATION 8/15/15 

CUSTOMER DECIED TO CANCEL 

PERMIT 

46559 6/12/2015 STAOl STANISLAUS COUNTY 112,796.20 B50612 STANISLAUS CO. PUBUC FAC 

lUTIES FEES 

46560 6/12/2015 U N U O l U N U M UFE INSURANCE CO. 

46561 6/15/2015 STAOl STANISLAUS COUNTY 

1,165.59 B50612 

3,887.00 B50615 

UFE INSURANCE WITHHOLDIN 

DUE DIUGENCE REVIEW AUDIT 

PAYMENT TO STAN COUNTY 

46562 6/16/2015 DIC04 DICKINSON, JOSHUA 100.00 B50617 HUGHSON'S CONCERT SERIES-

DOWNTOWN BAND PMT 

46563 6/16/2015 E M P O l STATE OF CAUFORNIA 

46564 6/16/2015 HAR02 THE HARTFORD 

46565 6/16/2015 10-Mar MARTINEZ, NEIKO 

46566 6/16/2015 PEROl P.E.R.S. 

46567 6/16/2015 RUI07 RUIZ, ADRIAN 

46568 6/16/2015 STA23 CalPERS SUPPLEMENTAL INCO 

46569 6/16/2015 UNI07 UNITED WAY OF STANISLAUS 

46570 6/18/2015 ABSOO ABS PRESORT 

1,225.63 B50617 PAYROLL TAXES 

679.66 B50617 

100.00 B50617 

8,790.98 B50617 

250.00 B50617 

370.00 B50617 

29.00 B50617 

1,663.68 

DEFERRED COMPENSATION 

HUGHSON'S CONCERT SERIES-

D O W N T O W N BAND PMT 

RETIREMENT 

HUGHSON'S CONCERT SERIES-

DOWNTOWN BAND PMT 

DEFERRED COMPENSATION 

UNITED WAY 

99159 PRINTING OF UTIUTY BILLS 

JUNE 2015 

46571 6/18/2015 AFLOl AFLAC 

46572 6/18/2015 ALL07 ALLEY INSURANCE SERVICE, 

880.70 463603 AFLAC 

592.00 1007 HEALTH PLAN CONSULTING 6/15 

46573 6/18/2015 ATTOl AT&T 

46574 6/18/2015 A V A O l AVAYA, INC 

21.59 B50618 PHONE 

125.16 273346004 PHONE 

46575 6/18/2015 BAR07 BARCO PRODUCTS 4,990.62 61506006 BENCHES FOR DOWNTOWN & 

PARKS 



Check Check Vendor 

Number Date Number Name 

Net 

Amount 

Payment Information-

Invo ice* Description 

46576 6/18/2015 CAL08 CALAVERAS MATERIALS, INC. 

46577 6/18/2015 CLA03 CLARK'S PEST CONTROL 

Check Total: 

46578 6/18/2015 C 0 N 1 4 CONDOR EARTH TECHNOLOGIES 

285.03 1571034 ROAD REPAIR 

102.00 B50618 PEST CONTROL 

57.00 B50619 PEST CONTROL 

159.00 

955.00 71153 GROUNDWATER MONITORING & 

REPORTING 

797.50 71221 M S 4 GENERAL PERMIT SUPPORT 

Check Total: 

46579 6/18/2015 DEL08 DELTA WIRELESS & NETWORK 

46580 6/18/2015 EXPOO EXPRESS PERSONNEL SERVICE 

Check Total: 

46581 6/18/2015 EZNOO EZ NETWORK SOLUTIONS 

46582 6/18/2015 H U G H HUGHSON FARM SUPPLY 

Check Total: 

46583 6/18/2015 HUG34 VALLEY PARTS WAREHOUSE, I 

Check Total: 

46584 6/18/2015 KEMOO KEMP, RAYLENE 

46585 6/18/2015 Kl MOO KIMBALL MIDWEST 

46586 6/18/2015 LEGOl LEGAL SHIELD 

46587 6/18/2015 MINOO MINTIERHARNISH PLANNING C 

46588 6/18/2015 MISOl MISSION UNIFORM SERVICE 

1,752.50 

257.25 

1,279.17 

1,258.64 

1,371.56 

3,909.37 

295.53 

59935 REPIACEMENT/REPAIROFSEC 

CAMERA ON OPERATIONS 

157720467 EXTRA HELP 05/10/15 

158053942 EXTRA HELP 5/17/15 

158909093 EXTRA HELP 6/7 /15 

29715 OFF SITE DATE STORAGE 

32.18 H138716 

5.05 H139023 

27.95 H139653 

104.29 H140108 

MISC PARTS SUPPUES 

S M A L L T O O L & SUPPUES 

SMALL TOOLS & SUPPUES 

S M A L L T O O L & SUPPUES. 

169.47 

4.28 

158.46 

162.74 

588.00 

379.13 

149765 SMALL EQUIPMENT 

149782 SMALL EQUIPMENT 

BS0618 HUGHSON'S CONCERT SERIES 

DOWNTOWN REIMBURSEMENT 

4211467 M ISC MATERIAL NEEDED TO 

REPAIR ST. DEPT EQUIP. 

25.90 B50618 

3,713.05 HUGHHEU06 

LEGAL SVCS 

HUGHSON 5TH CYCLE ELEMENT 

UPDATE 

83, ,39 51315 UNIFORM SERVICE 

207, ,86 500031499 UNIFORM SERVICE 

71, ,24 500071519 UNIFORM SERVICE 

62, .27 500071520 UNIFORM SERVICE 

30, ,00 500071521 UNIFORM SERVICE 

74, ,42 500118601 UNIFORM SERVICE 

30, ,00 500118602 UNIFORM SERVICE 

264, .81 500128519 UNIFORM SERVICE 

87, ,44 500163226 UNIFORM SERVICE 

72, .52 500163227 UNIFORM SERVICE 

30, .00 500163228 UNIFORM SERVICE 

71, ,24 500209394 UNIFORM SERVICE 

53, ,86 500209395 UNIFORM SERVICE 

30, ,00 500209396 UNFORM SERVICE 

Check Total: 1,169.05 



Check Check 

Number Date 

Vendor 

Number Name 

Net Payment Information-

Amount i n v o i c e * Description 

46589 6/18/2015 NEUOl NEUIVIILLER & BEARDSLEE 

Check Totai: 

46590 6/18/2015 NICOO NiCHOLE, SHAYUN 

46591 6/18/2015 OESOO OESAU, MARK 

46592 6/18/2015 OFF06 OFFiCE TEAM 

Check Total; 

46593 6/18/2015 PITOl PITNEY BOWES 

46594 6/18/2015 QUI03 QUICK N SAVE 

Check Total: 

46595 6/18/2015 RIC04 RICOH USA, INC 

46596 6/18/2015 RIV03 V. RIVERA CONCRETE 

46597 6/18/2015 SAN05 SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY 

46598 6/18/2015 SHO02 SHORE CHEMICAL COMPANY 

46599 6/18/2015 SYN02 SYNAGRO WEST, LLC 

46600 6/18/2015 TUR12 TURLOCK, CITY OF 

46601 5/18/2015 U N I l l UNIVAR USA, INC 

46602 6/18/2015 WIL03 C H . WILLIAMS & SONS 

45603 6/18/2015 WILIO WILSON TECHNOLOGIES 

Check Total: 

Cash Account Total: 

1,200.00 

6,826.00 

8,026.00 

50.00 

268853 LEGAL SERVICES 5/15 

269291 LEGAL SVCS 5/15 

B50618 HUGHSON'S CONCERT SERIES-

DOWNTOWN BAND PAYMENT 

194.00 B50618 HUGHSON'S CONCERT SERIES-

DOWNTOWN 

528.28 

748.00 

1,276.28 

513.38 

5.59 

37.22 

42.81 

1,340.15 

3,951.50 

479.00 

848.84 

2,819.98 

163.80 

625.95 

110.00 

190.00 

190.00 

43145748 EXTRA HELP 5/29/15 

43224370 EXTRA HELP 06 /05 /15 

706254015 POSTAGE LEASE 

1-5251 FUEL 

1-9408 FUEL 

94885975 COPIER LEASE 

52 SIDEWALK, CURB, & GUTTER 

REPLACEMENT 

N l l l O l O BACK UP GENERATOR AT WELL 

#6 OPERATING PERMIT 

42753 CHLORINE 

30-103404 SLUDGE REMOVAL 

201500026 DIESEL 

SJ688284 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 

135977 RENTAL OF OXYGEN CYUNDER 

FOR WELDING & REPAIRS 

1883 PHONE 

1894 PHONE 

380.00 

181,671.52 

Total Disbursements: 181,671.52 



                                                             MONEY MARKET GENERAL REDEVELOPMENT*
* TOTAL

Bank Statement Totals 8,783,517.83$           730,443.55$     206,383.54$        9,720,344.92$    
  Adjustment-Direct Deposit Payroll -$                            -$                    
  Outstanding Deposits +   -$                     -$                    
  Outstanding Checks/transfers - 5,750.82$                  (127,580.87)$    -$                     (121,830.05)$      
ADJUSTED TOTAL 8,789,268.65$           602,862.68$     206,383.54$        9,598,514.87$    

Investments:             Various  1,034,141.47$    
Multi-Bank WWTP 1,448,453.51$    
Investments:             L.A.I.F. 39,421.29$       39,295.92$          78,717.21$         
Total Investments 2,561,312.19$    
Total Cash & Investments   12,159,827.06$  

Breakdown of Investments
Investments: Various - ***850

Description Maturity Dates Quantity Opening Balance Closing Balance
 Interest 
Accrued 

% of 
Portfolio

Cash, Money, Funds. And Bank Deposits: 4,403.8800$             6,545.54$                -$              0.63%
Total: 4,403.8800$             6,545.54$                -$              

Fixed Income (Certificate of Deposits) Maturity Dates
Months til 
Maturity Quantity Market Price Market Value

 Interest 
Accrued 

 Rate of 
Return 

% of 
Portfolio

GE Money BK Draper Utah INSTL CTF DEP 10/08/10 - 10/08/15 ≈ 4 mo. 75,000.000$              100.7100$                75,532.50$              90.41$         2.000% 7.30%
BMW BK North Amer Salt Lake City Utah 11/12/10 - 11/12/15 ≈ 5 mo. 100,000.000$            100.8500$                100,850.00$           926.03$       2.000% 9.75%
Ally Bank Midvalue Utah CTF DEP ACT/365 02/04/11 - 02/04/16 ≈ 8 mo. 70,000.000$              101.2290$                70,860.30$              326.03$       2.000% 6.85%
GE Cap Finl Inc Retail CTF Dep 09/30/11 - 09/30/16 ≈ 15 mo. 115,000.000$            101.9080$                117,194.20$           195.34$       2.000% 11.33%
Goldman Sachs BK USA New York CTF DEP DTD 11/16/11 - 11/16/16 ≈ 17 mo. 53,000.000$              102.0900$                54,107.70$              491.16$       2.050% 5.23%
Discover BK Greenwood Del 05/02/12 - 05/02/17 ≈ 22 mo. 110,000.000$            101.4720$                111,619.20$           944.04$       1.750% 10.79%
GE Cap Inc Retail CTF Dep Program Book 05/04/12 - 05/04/17 ≈ 22 mo. 100,000.000$            101.6700$                101,670.00$           843.84$       1.750% 9.83%
American Express Centurion BK CTF DEP 05/09/13 - 05/09/18 ≈ 34 mo. 100,000.000$            100.2360$                100,236.00$           532.47$       1.150% 9.69%
Belmont SVGS BK Mass 11/13/14 - 11/13/18 ≈ 41 mo. 27,000.000$              101.0790$                27,291.33$              192.62$       1.550% 2.64%
State BK India York NY 09/11/14 - 09/11/19 ≈ 50 mo. 55,000.000$              100.9200$                55,506.00$              161.99$       2.150% 5.37%
American Express Fed SVGS BK CTF DEP 10/16/14 - 10/16/19 ≈ 52 mo. 30,000.000$              101.1830$                30,354.90$              24.74$         2.150% 2.94%
Discover BK Greenwood Del CTF 10/16/14 - 10/16/19 ≈ 52 mo. 100,000.000$            101.1810$                101,181.00$           82.47$         2.150% 9.78%
American Express Centurion BK CTF DEP 12/04/14 - 12/04/19 ≈ 53 mo. 80,000.000$              101.4910$                81,192.80$              708.82$       2.200% 7.85%
Total CDs 1,027,595.93$        5,519.96$    99.37%
Total Investments: Various Holdings 1,034,141.47$        5,519.96$    100.00%
Total Portfolio Investment 40.38%

Multi-Bank WWTP - ***934

Description Maturity Dates Quantity Opening Balance Closing Balance
 Interest 
Accrued 

% of 
Portfolio

Cash, Money, Funds, and Bank Deposits: 206,092.7700$        8,351.94$                -$              0.58%
Total: 206,092.7700$        8,351.94$                -$              

Fixed Income (Certificate of Deposits) Maturity Dates
Months til 
Maturity Quantity Market Price Market Value

 Interest 
Accrued 

 Rate of 
Return 

% of 
Portfolio

State BK India Chicago ILL CTF DEP 09/29/10 - 09/29/15 ≈ 3 mo. 116,000.000$            100.7720$                116,895.52$           228.82$       2.250% 8.07%
BMW BK North Amer Salt Lake City Utah 11/26/10 - 11/25/15 ≈ 5 mo. 75,000.000$              101.0230$                75,767.25$              626.99$       2.000% 5.23%
GE CAP Finl Inc Retail CTF DEP 09/30/11 - 03/30/16 ≈ 9 mo. 31,000.000$              101.9080$                31,591.48$              52.66$         2.000% 2.18%
Goldman Sachs BK USA New York CTF DEP DTD 11/23/11 - 11/23/16 ≈ 17 mo. 107,000.000$            102.1010$                109,248.07$           949.52$       2.050% 7.54%
Discover Bk Greenwood DEL 05/08/13 - 05/08/18 ≈ 35 mo. 40,000.000$              100.2390$                40,095.60$              218.03$       1.150% 2.77%
American Express Centurion Bk CTF DEP 05/09/13 - 05/09/18 ≈ 35 mo. 57,000.000$              100.2360$                57,134.52$              303.51$       1.150% 3.94%
Firstbank P R Santuce 05/10/13 - 05/10/18 ≈ 35 mo. 250,000.000$            100.2340$                250,585.00$           143.84$       1.050% 17.30%
State BK India Chicago ILL CTF DEP 12/18/13 - 12/18/18 ≈ 42 mo. 25,000.000$              101.7020$                25,425.50$              186.75$       2.050% 1.76%
GE CAP Retail BK Draper Utah Instl 01/10/14 - 01/10/19 ≈ 43 mo. 95,000.000$              101.6080$                96,527.60$              543.97$       1.900% 6.66%
First Sentry BK Inc Huntingtion West VA 03/08/13 - 03/08/19 ≈ 45 mo. 46,000.000$              98.3540$                  45,242.84$              31.88$         1.150% 3.12%
GE CAP Retail BK Draper Utah Instl 03/21/14 - 03/21/19 ≈ 45 mo. 80,000.000$              101.4770$                81,181.60$              166.68$       1.950% 5.60%
JP Morgan Chase BK NA Columbus Ohio CTF 04/30/15 - 04/30/19 ≈ 46 mo. 100,000.000$            100.1610$                100,161.00$           -$              1.500% 6.92%
Barclays BK Del Wilmington CTF Dep 05/28/14 - 05/28/19 ≈ 47 mo. 40,000.000$              100.2720$                40,108.80$              -$              0.000% 2.77%
Goldman Sachs BK USA New York CTF UT CTF DEP 06/04/14 - 06/04/19 ≈ 48 mo. 80,000.000$              101.0450$                80,836.00$              644.38$       2.000% 5.58%
Sallie Mae BK Salt Lake City UT CTF DEP 10/08/14 - 10/08/19 ≈ 52 mo. 50,000.000$              101.2510$                50,625.50$              64.79$         2.150% 3.50%
State BK India Chicago ILL 10/14/14 - 10/15/19 ≈ 52 mo. 54,000.000$              101.2290$                54,663.66$              49.71$         2.100% 3.77%
Sallie Mae BK Salt Lake City UT CTF DEP 10/22/14 - 10/22/19 ≈ 52 mo. 83,000.000$              101.1610$                83,963.63$              39.11$         2.100% 5.80%
Wells Fargo BK N A San Francisco Calif 04/30/15 - 04/30/20 ≈ 58 mo. 100,000.000$            100.0480$                100,048.00$           -$              1.250% 6.91%
Total CDs 1,429,000.000$         1,814.8210$             1,440,101.57$        4,250.64$    99.42%
Total Multi-Bank WWTP Holdings 1,448,453.51$        4,250.64$    100.00%
Total Portfolio Investment 56.55%

L.A.I.F. Investments

Account #

Quarter End Principal 
Balance as of           
04/15/2015

 Quarterly Interest 
Earned as of 
04/15/2015 Interest Rate Total

****375 39,396.02$                        25.27$                         0.26% 39,421.29$              50.08%
****005 39,270.74$                        25.18$                         0.26% 39,295.92$              49.92%
Total L.A.I.F Investments Holdings 78,718.21$              100.00%
Total Portfolio Investment 3.07%

                                                               

 John Padilla, Treasurer                                     Date                              

City of Hughson
Portfolio of Investments

April  2015

% of Investment 

All investment actions executed since the last report 
have been made in full compliance with the 
Investment Policy.  The City of Hughson will meet its 
expenditure obligations for the next six months as 
required by California Governmnet Code Section 
53646 (b)(2) and (3) respectively.   



Money Market 8,783,517.83$     
Investments: Variou 1,034,141.47$     
Multi-Bank WWTP 1,448,453.51$     
L.A.I.F. ****375           39,421.29$                 
L.A.I.F. ****005         39,295.92$                 
Total Invest: 2,561,312.19$           
Total ALL 11,344,830.02$         

6,545.54$                          
8,351.94$                          

Cash, Money, Funds, and Bank Deposits 14,897.48$                        
1,027,595.93$                  
1,440,101.57$                  

Cetificate Deposit 2,467,697.50$                  
L.A.I.F. 78,718.21$                        

Charts and Graphs 

Cash, Money, Funds. And Bank Deposits: 
0.63% 

GE Money BK Draper Utah INSTL CTF DEP 
7.30% 

BMW BK 
North 

Amer Salt 
Lake City 

Utah 
9.75% 

Ally Bank Midvalue Utah CTF DEP ACT/365 
6.85% 

GE Cap Finl Inc Retail CTF Dep 
11.33% 

Goldman Sachs BK USA New York CTF DEP 
DTD 

5.23% 

Discover BK 
Greenwood Del 

10.79% 

GE Cap Inc Retail 
CTF Dep Program 

Book 
9.83% 

American Express 
Centurion BK CTF 

DEP 
9.69% 

Belmont SVGS BK Mass 
2.64% 

State BK India York NY 
5.37% 

American Express Fed SVGS BK CTF DEP 
2.94% 

Discover BK Greenwood Del CTF 
9.78% 

American Express 
Centurion BK CTF 

DEP 
7.85% 

Breakdown of Investments: Various - ***850 
April 2015  

Cash, Money, Funds, and 
Bank Deposits: 

0.58% 

State BK India 
Chicago ILL CTF 

DEP 
8.07% 

BMW BK North Amer Salt Lake City Utah 
5.23% 

GE CAP Finl Inc Retail CTF DEP 
2.18% 

Goldman Sachs BK USA New York CTF DEP 
DTD 

7.54% 

Discover Bk Greenwood DEL 
2.77% 

American Express Centurion Bk CTF DEP 
3.94% 

Firstbank P R Santuce 
17.30% 

State BK India Chicago ILL CTF DEP 
1.76% 

GE CAP Retail BK Draper Utah Instl  
6.66% 

First Sentry BK Inc Huntingtion West VA 
3.12% 

GE CAP Retail BK Draper Utah Instl  
5.60% 

JP Morgan Chase BK NA 
Columbus Ohio CTF 

6.92% 

Barclays BK Del Wilmington CTF Dep 
2.77% 

Goldman Sachs BK USA New York CTF UT 
CTF DEP 
5.58% 

Sallie Mae BK Salt Lake City UT CTF DEP 
3.50% 

State BK India Chicago ILL 
3.77% 

Sallie Mae BK Salt Lake City UT CTF DEP 
5.80% 

Wells 
Fargo BK N 

A San 
Francisco 

Calif 
6.91% 

Breakdown of Multi-Bank WWTP - ***934 
April 2015  

78.20% 

8.80% 

12.32% 

0.35% 0.35% 

Total Portfolio of Investment  
(Including Money Market Cash) 

April 2015 

Money Market  $8,783,517.83

Investments: Various
$1,034,141.47

Multi-Bank WWTP  $1,448,453.51

L.A.I.F. ****375             $39,421.29

L.A.I.F. ****005           $39,295.92

Total: $11,344,830.02 

40.37% 

56.53% 

1.54% 1.53% 

Total Portfolio of Investments by Account 
April 2015 

Investments: Various
$1,034,141.47

Multi-Bank WWTP
$1,448,453.51

L.A.I.F. ****375
$39,421.29

L.A.I.F. ****005
$39,295.92

Total: $2,561,312.19 

****375 
 $39,421.29  

50.08% 

****005 
 $39,295.92  

49.92% 

Breakdown of L.A.I.F. Investments 
April 2015 

Total: $78,718.21 

Cash, Money, 
Funds, and Bank 

Deposits 
 $14,897.48  

0.58% 

Cetificate 
Deposit 

 $2,467,697.50  
96.35% 

L.A.I.F. 
 $78,718.21  

3.07% 

Total Portfolio of Investments by Type 
April 2015 

Total: $2,561,312.19 



 

 
Meeting Date:         June 22, 2015  
Subject: Approval of the Treasurer’s Report: Investment Portfolio 

Report – April 2015 
Presented By:  John Padilla, City Treasurer  
 
Approved By:         _______________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation:   
 
Review and approve the City of Hughson Treasurer's Report: Investment Portfolio 
Report for April 2015. 
 
Summary: 
 
The City Treasurer is required to review the City’s investment practices and approve the 
monthly Treasurer’s report. Enclosed is a summary of the City of Hughson’s Investment 
Portfolio for April 2015 and is provided as a supplementary document to the monthly 
Treasurer’s report.  As of April 2015, the City of Hughson’s investment total is 
$2,561,312.19 and has a total cash and investment balance of $12,159,827.06.  All 
investment actions executed since the last report have been made in full compliance of 
the City of Hughson’s Investment Policy.  The City of Hughson meets its expenditure 
obligations for the next six months as required by California Government Code Section 
53646 (b) (2) and (3) respectively.       
 
Background and Overview: 
 
The Investment Portfolio Report is intended to provide supplementary documentation of 
the City of Hughson’s investment practices. According to the City of Hughson’s 
Investment Policy, the City Treasurer shall submit to the City Council a quarterly 
investment report containing a complete description of the portfolio, the type of 
investments, the issuers, maturity dates, par and dollar values, and the current market 
values of each component of the portfolio.  It is the goal of the City Treasurer however, 
to provide the investment report on a monthly basis as a supplement to the Treasurer’s 
Report. Furthermore, when dealing with investment activities, the City of Hughson 
primary objectives, in order of priority, are safety, liquidity, and return on investments. 
 

 

CITY OF HUGHSON AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.3 
SECTION 3: CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



According to Michael DeGeeter, the City’s MBS Account Executive, the City of Hughson 
utilizes a 5 year Certificate Deposit (CD) laddering approach for its investment 
practices.  This approach layers various CDs depending on interest rates and timing, 
which allows for reduced portfolio rates and a continuous stream of maturity dates. Mr. 
DeGeeter states that this CD approach has always spread positively for the City of 
Hughson and has had the highest yield of any spread thus far.    
 
Enclosed is the City of Hughson’s Treasurer’s Report: Investment Portfolio Report for 
April 2015 along with supplementary graphs depicting the percentage of the City’s 
portfolio of investments. After review and evaluation of the report, City staff submits the 
following detailed explanation for investments displaying significant variances: 
 
Rate of Return and Debt Repayment 
 
The rate of return for each investment has been included per City Council’s request.  
Because each investment has a unique period of return, each corresponding rate of 
return reflects the time when they were purchased.  Furthermore, City staff is currently 
developing information regarding the use of investment generated income for 
outstanding debt payment. Upon further information and analysis regarding the City’s 
investments and their relation to the City’s various debts, City staff will report to Council 
the subsequent findings.    
 
Multi-Bank WWTP – Cash, Money, Funds, and Bank Deposits 
 
The Cash, Money, Funds, and Bank Deposits account reflects a balance of $8,351.94. 
As a result of the Doral Bank closures, the $200,000.00 was released to the Cash, 
Money, Funds, and Bank Deposits account.  Since then however, the $200,000.00 has 
been reallocated to Wells Fargo ($100,000.00) CDs and JP Morgan ($100,000.00) CDs.   
 
L.A.I.F. Investments 
 
The reported Local Agency Investment Fund (L.A.I.F.) investments reflect the City’s 
most current balance statement as of April 15, 2015. The two L.A.I.F. accounts share a 
combined balance of $78,718.21, comprising of only 3.08% of the City’s total portfolio of 
investments. L.A.I.F. investments are reported on a quarterly basis.  City staff will 
continue to report the most recent L.A.I.F. investments and will proceed to update the 
funds on a quarterly basis.   
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
As of April 2015, the total investments balance for the City of Hughson is $2,561,312.19 
accounting for 21.06% of the City’s total cash and investments. The total cash and 
investment amount is $12,159,827.06. Of the amounts invested, 0.58% is invested in 
Cash, Money, Funds, and Bank Deposits, 3.07% is invested in L.A.I.F. investments, and 
96.35% is invested in Certificate Deposits. As the year progresses and market values 
and interest rates increase, City staff will continue to monitor and report the City of 
Hughson’s investment practices. 



 

 
   
Meeting Date: June 22, 2015 
Subject: Consideration of the Use of Community Enhancement 

Funds for the Purchase of Automated External 
Defibrillators for City Facilities 

Presented By:  Raul L. Mendez, City Manager   
 
Approved By: _________________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve the use of Community Enhancement Funds for the purchase of 
automated external defibrillators for City facilities.   
 
Background and Overview: 
 
Community Enhancement Funds are derived from development fees collected for 
the purpose of funding improvements and projects in the community for the benefit 
of City residents.  Previously, the City Council approved using Community 
Enhancement Funds for the High School Sports Fields Project, to install lights on 
the bridge on Hatch Road, to repaint the water tower by the City corporation yard, 
to install wrought iron fencing at City Hall in order to provides a secure location for 
electric vehicles, for parking lot improvements at Starn Park, for the repainting of 
City Hall/Senior Citizen Center, for banners and electrical improvements to 
Hughson Avenue for the holiday season, for partial funding of Hughson Fire's 
Command Vehicle Unit and for parklet improvements in the downtown. 
 
Hughson Fire Protection District Command Vehicle Project: 
 
During meetings of the 2+2 City of Hughson/Hughson Fire Protection District 
Committee this year, a discussion ensued regarding the lack of automated external 
defibrillators (AED) in local public facilities.  This issue came to light during an 
incident last year at Hughson High School.  As such, the Hughson Fire Protection 
District (HFPD) initiated a project to take a holistic approach to the installation of 
this emergency response equipment citywide.  HFPD identified a need for over 20 
AED units to serve residents at local schools, city facilities, churches, etc.  To 
initiate the project HFPD approved $5,000 in funding to be leveraged with other 

 

CITY OF HUGHSON AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.4 
SECTION 3:  CONSENT CALENDAR 



sources and also developed a very inexpensive training element that would be 
locally available for public employees.   
 
In an effort to collaboratively fund this essential equipment, Captain Jeff Serpa 
made presentations to the Hughson Unified School Board, the 2+2 City/Fire 
Committee and more recently to the Hughson City Council on May 11, 2015.  
Following the presentation, the Hughson City Council directed staff to bring back a 
recommendation for the City’s consideration of purchasing AED equipment for 
City facilities and an appropriate funding source.  Furthermore, it was noted that 
Hughson Police Services would be researching AED equipment currently available 
at their offices and patrol vehicles. 
 
In discussions with HFPD, City staff has determined that the cost of each AED unit 
is approximately $1,200.  For uniformity, HFPD recommends a very simple unit 
that is compatible with equipment from the local ambulance company (Pro 
Transport).  To take advantage of some economies of scale, HFPD will work with 
Pro Transport for the purchase of all units once necessary funding is secured.  It 
should be noted that Hughson Unified School District has received an anonymous 
donation of $10,000. 
 
Following the request by HFPD, City staff has identified five City locations where 
AED equipment would be appropriate.  These include City Hall, Senior Center, 
Third Street Center, Public Works Service Yard and the Wastewater Treatment 
Facility.  Installation of the units will allow them to be readily available for use for 
both the public and City employees on an as needed basis.  City staff will work with 
the HFPD to obtain necessary training on the equipment.    
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
The Hughson Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 did include 
appropriations of $10,000 in the Community Enhancement Fund for downtown 
improvements and anticipated revenue in the amount of approximately $20,000.  If 
the City Council approves funding for the automated defibrillator equipment, it will 
be included as part of the Final Budget.  The Community Enhancement Fund is 
currently projected to have approximately $90,000 at year end.  



 

 
Meeting Date:         June 22, 2015  
Subject: City of Hughson’s 2014-2015 Investment Policy  
Presented By:  John Padilla, City Treasurer  
 
Approved By:         _______________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation:   
 
Consider the adoption of Resolution No. 2015-21a, approving the City of Hughson’s 
2015-2016 Investment Policy. 
 
Summary: 
 
In accordance with the provisions of California Government Code Section 53646 and 
the City of Hughson’s Investment Policy, the Treasurer or Fiscal Officer of the City shall 
prepare and submit a Statement of Investment Policy to the City Council for their 
consideration.  It is for the purposes of prudence and fiscal accountability that the 
review of City’s Investment Policy occurs at least once a year to most accurately fit the 
goals of the City.    
 
Background and Overview: 
 
The proposed Investment Policy provides a guide and procedures for establishing and 
maintaining the City’s investments. The primary objectives of the City’s policy are, in 
priority of order: safety, liquidity, and return on investments. 
 
It is the policy of the City of Hughson to review and approve the City’s Investment Policy 
on an annual basis.  Any modifications to the Policy must be approved by the City 
Council.  The Investment Policy in review reflects the City of Hughson’s most recent 
Investment Policy adopted in 2014.  
 
Proposed Modifications: 
 
Since the Investment Policy was most recently modified and updated in 2014, there are 
only a few proposed modifications to the 2015-2016 Investment Policy.  Such 
modifications include the addition of the period in which the Investment Policy applies 
(e.g. 2015-2016), a minor grammatical adjustment under section 5.0 Ethics and 

 

CITY OF HUGHSON AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.5 
SECTION 3: CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Conflicts of Interest, and the removal of redundant language under section 11.0 
Reporting. These minor modifications are intended to improve and clarify the language 
and readability of the Investment Policy document.  
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
There is no direct fiscal impact of the policy however; it will provide a guide for prudently 
and safely investing the City’s funds. 
 
  



CITY OF HUGHSON 
CITY COUNCIL 

RESOLUTION NO 2015-21a    
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUGHSON ADOPTING  
AN INVESTMENT POLICY   

 
WHEREAS, the California Government Code 53600 et. al. recommends the 

annual review and adoption of a City Investment Policy, and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Treasurer or fiscal officer of the City of Hughson shall 
annually prepare and submit a statement of investment policy and such policy, and any 
changes thereto, shall be considered by the City Council at a public meeting in 
accordance with the provisions of California Government Code Section 53646; and   

 
WHEREAS, it shall be the policy of the City of Hughson to invest funds in a 

manner that reflect the goals of safety, liquidity and return on investments while meeting 
the daily cash flow demands of the City and conforming to all statutes governing the 
Investment of the City of Hughson’s funds.   

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
Hughson hereby adopts the Investment Policy attached hereto as Exhibit “A” which was 
last updated in 2014 by Resolution No. 2014-20.   
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Hughson at its 
regularly scheduled meeting on this 22nd day of June, 2015 by the following roll call 
vote; 
      
                  AYES:                      
            
                  NOES:                      
           
                  ABSTENTIONS:      
 
                  ABSENT:                 
 
 
 _________________________ 
 MATT BEEKMAN, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
DOMINIQUE SPINALE ROMO, City Clerk 



 

 
382503-2 

CITY OF HUGHSON INVESTMENT POLICY 
2015-2016 

 
 
1.0 SCOPE  
 

This investment policy applies to all financial assets of the City of Hughson. These funds 
are accounted for in the annual City audit and include:  All funds. 
 
Funds not included in the policy include:  None. 

 
2.0 PRUDENCE 
 

Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing 
including, but not limited to, the general economic conditions and the anticipated needs 
of the City of Hughson, which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise 
in the management of their own affairs; not for speculation, but for investment, 
considering the probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income to be 
derived.  The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the 
"prudent investor" standard (California Government Code Section 53600.3) and shall be 
applied in the context of managing an overall portfolio.  Investment officers acting in 
accordance with written procedures and the investment policy and exercising due 
diligence shall be relieved of personal responsibility for an individual security's credit 
risk or market price changes, provided deviations from expectations are reported in a 
timely fashion and appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments. 

 
3.0 OBJECTIVES: 
 

As specified in California Government Code Sections 53600.1 and 53630.5, when 
investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling or managing public 
funds, the primary objectives, in priority order, of the investment activities shall be: 

 
A. Safety:  Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program.  

Investments of the City of Hughson shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to 
ensure the preservation of capital in the overall portfolio. To attain this objective, 
diversification is required in order that potential losses on individual securities do 
not exceed the income generated from the remainder of the portfolio  

 
B. Liquidity:  The investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to enable the 

City of Hughson to meet all operating requirements which might be reasonably 
anticipated. 

 
C. Return on Investments: The investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective 

of attaining a market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, 
taking into account the investment risk constraints and the cash flow characteristics of 
the portfolio.  

 



  
382503-2 

2 

4.0 DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY 
 

Authority to manage the investment program is derived from California Government 
Code Sections 53600 et seq.  Management responsibility for the investment program, 
including but not limited to the authority to invest or to reinvest funds, to sell or exchange 
securities, and to deposit funds for safekeeping, is hereby delegated to the City Manager, 
who is the finance officer of the City of Hughson, who shall establish written procedures 
for the operation of the investment program consistent with this investment policy.    No 
person may engage in an investment transaction except as provided under the terms of 
this policy and the procedures established by the City Manager.  The City Manager shall 
be responsible for all transactions undertaken and shall establish a system of controls to 
regulate the activities of subordinate officials.  Under the provisions of California 
Government Code Section 53600.3, the City Manager is a trustee and a fiduciary subject 
to the prudent investor standard. 

 
5.0 ETHICS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
 

Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal 
business activity that could conflict with the proper execution of the investment program, 
or which could impair their ability to make impartial investment decisions.  
 
Employees and investment officials shall disclose any material interests in financial 
institutions with which they conduct business.  They shall further disclose any personal 
financial/investment positions that could be related to the performance of the investment 
portfolio.  Employees and officers shall refrain from undertaking personal investment 
transaction with the same individual with whom business is conducted on behalf of the 
City.  

 
6.0 AUTHORIZED FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND DEALERS 
 

The City Manager will maintain a list of financial institutions, selected on the basis of 
credit worthiness, financial strength, experience, and minimal capitalization, authorized 
to provide investment services.  In addition, a list will also be maintained of approved 
security broker/dealers selected by credit worthiness who are authorized to provide 
investment and financial advisory services in the State of California.  No public deposit 
shall be made except in a qualified public depository as established by state laws. 

 
For brokers/dealers of government securities and other investments, the City Manager 
shall select only broker/dealers who are licensed and in good standing with the California 
Department of Securities, the Securities and Exchange Commission, the National 
Association of Securities Dealers or other applicable self-regulatory organizations. 

 
Before engaging in investment transactions with a broker/dealer, the City Manager shall 
have received from said firm a signed Certification Form.  This form shall attest that the 
individual responsible for the City of Hughson’s account with that firm has reviewed the 
City of Hughson’s Investment Policy and that the firm understands the policy and intends 



  
382503-2 

3 

to present investment recommendations and transactions to the City of Hughson that are 
appropriate under the terms and conditions of the Investment Policy.  
 

7.0 AUTHORIZED AND SUITABLE INVESTMENTS: 
 

The City of Hughson is empowered by California Government Code Sections 53601 and 
53635 to invest in the following:  

 
A.  Bonds issued by the City of Hughson, or by a department, board, agency or 

authority of the City of Hughson.  
 

B.  United States Treasury Bills, Notes & Bonds.  
 

C. Registered state warrants or treasury notes or bonds issued by the State of 
California, including bonds payable solely out of the revenues from a revenue 
producing property owned, controlled, or operated by the state or by a 
department, board, agency, or authority of the state  

 
D. Registered treasury notes or bonds of any of the other 49 states in addition to 

California, including bonds payable solely out of the revenues from a revenue-
producing property owned, controlled, or operated by a state or by a department, 
board, agency, or authority of any of the other 49 states, in addition to California.  

 
E.  Bonds, notes, warrants or other evidence of debt issued by a local agency within 

the State of California, including bonds payable solely out of the revenues from a 
revenue-producing property owned, controlled, or operated by the local agency, 
or by a department, board, agency, or authority of the local agency.  

 
F.  Federal agency or United States government-sponsored enterprise obligations, 

participations, or other instruments, including those issued by or fully guaranteed 
as to principal and interest by federal agencies or United States government-
sponsored enterprise.  

 
G.  Bankers acceptances (BA) with a term not to exceed 180 days.  Not more than 

40% of surplus funds can be invested in bankers’ acceptances and no more than 
30% of surplus funds can be invested in the bankers acceptances of any single 
commercial bank.  

 
H.  Commercial Paper of “prime” quality with a term not to exceed 270 days issued 

by either (1) a U.S. Corporation with the highest ranking provided by a nationally 
recognized statistical rating organization with total assets in excess of 500 million 
dollars with debt other than commercial paper that is rated “A” or higher by a 
nationally recognized statistical rating organization, or (2) a U.S. special purpose 
corporation, trust or limited liability company with programwide credit 
enhancements and which has commercial paper that is rated “A-1” or higher, or 
the equivalent, by a  nationally recognized statistical-rating organization.  
Commercial paper cannot exceed 25% of total City funds.    



  
382503-2 

4 

 
I.  Negotiable Certificates of Deposit (NCD) issued by nationally or state chartered 

banks or state or federal associations or credit unions.  Not more than 30% of City 
funds can be invested in certificates of deposit, and the amount of surplus funds is 
limited by the requirements of California Government Code section 53638.  

 
J.  Repurchase/Reverse Repurchase Agreements of any securities authorized by 

California Government Code section 53601, subdivision (i).  
 

K.  Medium term notes (not to exceed 5 Years) of U.S. corporations rated "A" or 
better by a nationally recognized rating service.  Not more than 30% of City funds 
can be invested in medium term notes.  

 
L.  Shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified management companies (Money 

Market Mutual Funds) investing in the securities and obligations authorized by 
this Section.  Such Funds must carry the highest rating of at least two of the 
nationally recognized statistical rating organization.  Not more than 10% of the 
City’s funds can be invested in any one mutual fund.  

 
M.  Funds held under the terms of a trust indenture or other contract or agreement 

may be invested according to the provisions of those indentures or agreements.  
 
N.  Collateralized bank deposits with a perfected security interest in accordance 

with the Uniform Commercial Code (UCC) or applicable federal security 
regulations.  

 
 

P.  Shares of beneficial interest issued by a joint power authority organized pursuant 
to Section 6509.7 that invests in the securities and obligations authorized in 
subdivisions 7.0.A through 7.0.N, inclusive.  Each share shall represent an equal 
proportional interest in the underlying pool of securities owned by the joint 
powers authority.  To be eligible under this section, the joint powers authority 
issuing the shares shall have retained an investment adviser that meets all of the 
following criteria: 

 (1)  The advisor is registered or exempt from registration with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission. 

 (2)  The advisor has no less than five years of experience investing in the 
securities and obligations authorized in subdivisions 7.0.A through 7.0.N, 
inclusive. 

 (3)  The advisor has assets under management in excess of five hundred million 
dollars ($500,000,000). 

 
Q. Any other investment security authorized under the provisions of California 

Government Code Sections 5922, 53601 and 53635.  
 



  
382503-2 

5 

California Government Code Sections 53601 and 53635 contain a detailed summary of 
the limitations and special conditions that apply to each of the above-listed investment 
securities.   

 
Prohibited Investments.  Under the provisions of California Government Code Section 
53601.6, the City of Hughson shall not invest any funds covered by this Investment 
Policy in inverse floaters, range notes, interest-only strips derived from mortgage pools 
or any investment that may result in a zero interest accrual if held to maturity.  

 
8.0 COLLATERALIZATION: 

All certificates of deposits must be collateralized by U.S. Treasury Obligations. 
Collateral must be held by a third party trustee and valued on a monthly basis.  The 
percentage of collateralization on repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements will 
adhere to the amount required under California Government Code Sections 53601(i)(2). 

 
9.0 SAFEKEEPING AND CUSTODY: 
 

All security transactions entered into by the City of Hughson shall be conducted on 
delivery-versus-payment (DVP) basis.  All securities purchased or acquired shall be 
delivered to the City of Hughson by book entry, physical delivery or by third party 
custodial agreement as required by California Government Code Sections 53601 and 
53635.  

 
10.0 DIVERSIFICATION: 
 

The City of Hughson will diversify its investments by security type and institution.  It is 
the policy of the City of Hughson to diversify its investment portfolio.  Assets shall be 
diversified to eliminate the risk of loss resulting from over concentration of assets in a 
specific maturity, a specific issuer or a specific class of securities.  Diversification 
strategies shall be reviewed on an annual basis at minimum.  In establishing specific 
diversification strategies, the following general policies and constraints shall apply:  
 
A. Portfolio maturities shall be matched versus liabilities to avoid undue 

concentration in a specific maturity sector.  
 

B. Maturities selected shall provide for stability of income and liquidity.  
 

C. Disbursement and payroll dates shall be covered through maturities investments, 
marketable U.S. Treasury bills or other cash equivalent instruments such as 
money market mutual funds.  

 
11.0 REPORTING 
 

 
The Treasurer or City Manager shall report to the City Council on a monthly and annual 
basis.  The monthly investment report submitted to the City Council will contain the 
following: 



  
382503-2 

6 

a. An investment inventory including types and amounts of investments, issuing 
financial institutions and maturates 

b. Average maturity of the portfolio 
c. Current market value of investments with maturities of more than 12 months 
d. A statement indicating that the City can meet its expenditure requirements for the 

upcoming 180 days 
e. A statement indicating that the portfolio complies with the City’s Investment 

Policy 
f. Percent of portfolio invested by type of instrument  
g. Comparison of portfolio performance to the average yield rate for the three-month 

treasury bill  
Written explanation for any variances to policy 

 
 As specified in California Government Code Section 53646(e), if all funds are placed in 

LAIF, FDIC-insured accounts and/or in a county investment pool, the foregoing report 
elements may be replaced by copies of the latest statements from such institutions. 

 
12.0 ALTERNATE POLICY* 
 

In lieu of investing excess funds as provided herein, in accordance with Government 
Code Section 53684, the City Council may, by resolution, deposit excess funds with the 
Treasurer of the State of California, for investment in the Local Agency Investment Fund 
("LAIF"), provided that approximately one month's revenues of the City shall be kept in 
an authorized depository for payment of appropriate costs of the City, and the excess 
thereof shall be invested in the LAIF. 
 

 
13.0 INVESTMENT POLICY REVIEW AND MODIFICATIONS 
 

The Policy shall be reviewed on an annual basis, and modifications must be approved by 
the City Council. 

 
13.0 GLOSSARY 
 

GLOSSARY* 
 

AGENCIES.  Federal agency securities and/or government-sponsored enterprises. 
 
ASKED:  The price at which securities are offered. 
 
BANKERS’ ACCEPTANCE (BA):  A draft or bill or exchange accepted by a bank or trust 
company.  The accepting institution guarantees payment of the bill, as well as the issuer. 
 
BENCHMARK:  A comparative base for measuring the performance or risk tolerance of the 
investment portfolio.  A benchmark should represent a close correlation to the level of risk and 
the average duration of the portfolio’s investments. 
 
BID:  The price offered by a buyer of securities.  See Offer. 



  
382503-2 

7 

 
BROKER:  A broker brings buyers and sellers together for a commission. 
 
CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSIT (CD):  A time deposit with a specific maturity evidenced by a 
certificate.  Large-denomination CD’s are typically negotiable. 
 
COLLATERAL:  Securities, evidence of deposit or other property, which a borrower pledges to 
secure repayment of a loan.  Also refers to securities pledged by a bank to secure deposits of 
public monies. 
 
COLLATERALIZED BANK DEPOSITS:  Non-negotiable Certificate of Deposit issued by a 
nationally or state – chartered bank or association or a State – licensed branch or a foreign bank 
(insured by the federal government); Bank Collateralized Savings.  
 
COMMERCIAL PAPER (CP): An unsecured short-term promissory note issued by 
corporations, with maturities ranging from 2 to 270 days. 
 
COUPON:  (a) The annual rate of interest that a bond’s issuer promises to pay the bondholder 
on the bond’s face value.  (b)  A certificate attached to a bond evidencing interest due on a 
payment date.  DEALER:  A dealer, as opposed to a broker, acts as a principal in all transactions, 
buying and selling for his own account. 
 
DEBENTURE:  A bond secured only by the general credit of the issuer. 
 
DELIVERY VERSUS PAYMENT (DVP):  There are two methods of delivery of securities:  
delivery versus payment and delivery versus receipt.  Delivery versus payment is delivery of 
securities with an exchange of money for the securities.  Delivery versus receipt is delivery of 
securities with an exchange of signed receipt for the securities. 
 
*Subject to applicable provisions of law 
 
DERIVATIVES:  (1) Financial instruments whose return profile is linked to, or derived from, 
the movement of one or more underlying index or security, and may include a leveraging factor, 
or (2) financial contracts based upon notional amounts whose value is derived from an 
underlying index or security (interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equities or commodities). 
 
DISCOUNT:  The difference between the cost price of a security and its maturity when quoted 
at lower than face value.  A security selling below original offering price shortly after sale also is 
considered to be at a discount. 
 
DISCOUNT SECURITIES: Non-interest bearing money market instruments that are issued at a 
discount and redeemed at maturity for full face value, e. g., U. S. Treasury Bills. 
 
DIVERSIFICATION:  Dividing investment funds among a variety of securities offering 
independent returns. 
 



  
382503-2 

8 

FEDERAL CREDIT AGENCIES:  Agencies of the Federal government set up to supply credit 
to various classes of institutions and individuals, e.g., S & L’s, small business firms, students, 
farmers, farm cooperatives, and exporters. 
 
FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION (FDIC):  A federal agency that 
insures bank deposits, currently up to $100,000 per deposit. 
 
FEDERAL FUNDS RATE:  The rate of interest at which Fed funds are traded.  This rate is 
currently pegged by the Federal Reserve through open-market operations. 
 
FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS (FHLB):  Government sponsored wholesale banks 
(currently 12 regional banks), which lend funds and provide correspondent banking services to 
member commercial banks, thrift institutions, credit unions and insurance companies.  The 
mission of the FHLBs is to liquefy the housing related assets of its members who must purchase 
stock in their district Bank. 
 
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION (FNMA):  FNMA, like GNMA was 
chartered under the Federal National Mortgage Association Act in 1938.  FNMA is a federal 
corporation working under the auspices of the Department of Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD).  It is the largest single provider of residential mortgage funds in the United States.  
Fannie Mae, as the corporation is called, is a private stockholder-owned corporation.  The 
corporation’s purchases include a variety of adjustable mortgages and second loans, in addition 
to fixed-rate mortgages.  FNMA’s securities are also highly liquid and are widely accepted.  
FNMA assumes and guarantees that all security holders will receive timely payment of principal 
and interest. 
 
FEDERAL OPEN MARKET COMMITTEE (FOMC):  Consists of seven members of the 
Federal Reserve Board and five of the twelve Federal Reserve Bank Presidents.  The President of 
the New York Federal Reserve Bank is a permanent member, while the other Presidents serve on 
a rotating basis.  The Committee periodically meets to set Federal Reserve guidelines regarding 
purchases and sales of Government Securities in the open market as a means of influencing the 
volume of bank credit and money. 
 
FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM:  The central bank of the United States created by Congress 
and consisting of a seven member Board of Governors in Washington, D. C., 12 regional banks 
and about 5,700 commercial banks that are members of the system. 
 
GOVERNMENT NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION (GNMA or Ginnie Mae):  
securities influencing the volume of bank credit guaranteed by GNMA and issued by mortgage 
bankers, commercial banks, savings and loan associations, and other institutions.  Security holder 
is protected by full faith and credit of the U. S. Government.  Ginnie Mae securities are backed 
by the FHA, VA or FmHa mortgages.  The term “pass-throughs” is often used to describe Ginnie 
Maes. 
 
INVERSE FLOATER: a bond or other type of debt whose coupon rate has an inverse 
relationship to a benchmark rate.  An inverse floater adjusts its coupon payment as the interest 



  
382503-2 

9 

rate changes.  When the interest rate goes up the coupon payment rate will go down because the 
interest rate is deducted, this less is paid to the holder. 
 
LIQUIDITY:  A liquid asset is one that can be converted easily and rapidly into cash without a 
substantial loss of value.  In the money market, a security is said to be liquid if the spread 
between bid and asked prices is narrow and reasonable size can be done at those quotes. 
 
LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT POOL (LAIF): The aggregate of all funds from 
California political subdivisions that are placed in the custody of the State Treasurer for 
investment and reinvestment. 
 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT INVESTMENT POOL (LGIP):  The aggregate of all funds from 
political subdivisions that are placed in the custody of the State Treasurer for investment and 
reinvestment. 
 
MARKET VALUE:  The price at which a security is trading and could presumably be 
purchased or sold. 
 
MASTER REPURCHASE AGREEMENT:  A written contract covering all future transactions 
between the parties to repurchase – reverse repurchase agreements that establishes each party’s 
rights in the transactions.  A master agreement will often specify, among other things, the right 
of the buyer-lender to liquidate the underlying securities in the event of default by the seller-
borrower. 
 
MATURITY:  The date upon which the principal or stated value of an investment becomes due 
and payable. 
 
MONEY MARKET:  The market in which short-term debt instruments (bills, commercial 
paper, bankers’ acceptances, etc.) are issued and traded. 
 
NEGOTIABLE CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSIT (NCD): a certificate of deposit (CD) with a 
minimum face value of $100,000. There are guaranteed by the bank and can usually be sold in a 
highly liquid secondary market, but cannot be cashed-in before maturity. 
 
OBLIGATIONS: A federally guaranteed obligation is debt that is backed by the full power of 
the United States government.  This type of debt is considered risk-free because it is guaranteed 
by the full faith and credit of the United States. 
 
OFFER:  The price asked by a seller of securities.  (When you are buying securities, you ask for 
an offer.)  See Asked and Bid. 
 
OPEN MARKET OPERATIONS:  Purchases and sales of government and certain other 
securities in the open market by the New York Federal Reserve Bank as directed by the FOMC 
in order to influence the volume of money and credit in the economy.  Purchases inject reserves 
into the bank system and stimulate growth of money and credit; sales have the opposite effect.  
Open market operations are the Federal Reserve’s most important and most flexible monetary 
policy tool. 



  
382503-2 

10 

 
PORTFOLIO:  Collection of securities held by an investor. 
 
PRIMARY DEALER:  A group of government securities dealers who submit daily reports of 
market activity and positions and monthly financial statements to the Federal Reserve Bank of 
New York and are subject to its informal oversight.  Primary dealers include Securities and 
Exchange Commission (SEC)-registered securities broker-dealers, banks, and a few unregulated 
firms. 
 
PRUDENT PERSON RULE:  An investment standard.  In some states the law requires that a 
fiduciary, such as a trustee, may invest money only in a list of securities selected by the custody 
state-the do-called legal list.  In other states, the trustee may invest in a security if it is one, which 
would be bought by a prudent person of discretion and intelligence who is seeking a reasonable 
income and preservation of capital. 
 
QUALIFIED PUBLIC DEPOSITORIES:  A financial institution which does not claim 
exemption from the payment of any sales or compensating use or ad valorem taxes under the 
laws of this state, which has segregated for the benefit of the commission eligible collateral 
having a value of not less than its maximum liability and which has been approved by the Public 
Deposit Protection Commission to hold public deposits. 
 
RATE OF RETURN:  The yield obtainable on a security based on its purchase price or its 
current market price.  This may be the amortized yield to maturity on a bond the current income 
return. 
 
REPURCHASE/REVERSE AGREEMENT (RP OR REPO):  A holder of securities sells 
these securities to an investor with an agreement to repurchase them at a fixed price on a fixed 
date.  The security “buyer” in effect lends the “seller” money for the period of the agreement, 
and the terms of the agreement are structured to compensate him for this.  Dealers use RP 
extensively to finance their positions.  Exception:  When the Fed is said to be doing RP, it is 
lending money that is, increasing bank reserves. 
 
SAFEKEEPING:  A service to customers rendered by banks for a fee whereby securities and 
valuables for all types and descriptions are held in the bank’s vaults for protection. 
 
SECONDARY MARKET:  A market made for the purchase and sale of outstanding issues 
following the initial distribution. 
 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISION:  Agency created by Congress to protect 
investors in securities transactions by administering securities legislation. 
 
SEC RULE 15C3-1:  See Uniform Net Capital Rule. 
 
STRUCTURED NOTES:  Notes issued by Government Sponsored Enterprises (FHLB, FNMA, 
SLMA, etc.) and Corporations, which have imbedded options (E.G., call features, step-up 
coupons, floating rate coupons, derivative-based returns) into their debt structure.  Their market 



  
382503-2 

11 

performance is impacted by the fluctuation of interest rates, the volatility of the imbedded 
options and shifts in the shape of the yield curve. 
 
TREASURY BILLS:  A non-interest bearing discount security issued by the U. S. treasury to 
finance the national debt.  Most bills are issued to mature in three months, six months, or one 
year. 
 
TREASURY BONDS:  Long-term coupon-bearing U. S. Treasury securities issued as direct 
obligations of the U. S. Government and having initial maturities of more than 10 years. 
 
TREASURY NOTES:  Medium-term coupon-bearing U. S. Treasury securities issued as direct 
obligations of the U. S. Government and having initial maturities from two to ten years. 
 
TRUSTEE: A person or firm that holds or administers property or assets for the benefit of a 
third party.  
 
TRUST INDENTURE: An agreement in the bond contract made between a bond issuer and a 
trustee that represents the bondholder’s interests by highlighting the rules and responsibilities 
that each party must adhere to.  It may also indicate where the income stream for the bond is 
derived from.   
 
UNIFORM NET CAPITAL RULE:  Securities and Exchange Commission requirement that 
member firms as well as nonmember broker-dealers in securities maintain a maximum ratio of 
indebtedness to liquid capital of 15 to 1; also called net capital rule and net capital ratio.  
Indebtedness covers all money owed to a firm, including margin loans and commitments to 
purchase securities, one reason new public issues are spread among members of underwriting 
syndicates.  Liquid capital includes cash and assets easily converted into cash. 
 
WEIGHTED AVERAGE RATE OF RETURN: Rate of return calculated based on interest 
earning and length of actual holding for each individual security.   
 
 
YIELD:  The rate of annual income return on an investment, expressed as a percentage.  (a)  
INCOME YIELD is obtained by dividing the current dollar income by the current market price 
for the security.  (b)  NET YIELD or YIELD TO MATURITY is the current income yield 
minus any premium above par or plus any discount from par in purchase price, with the 
adjustment spread over the period from the date of purchase to the date of maturity of the bond. 
 
 























































































































































































CITY OF HUGHSON 
 CITY COUNCIL  

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-19 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUGHSON 
CONSIDERING INTENTION TO LEVY AND COLLECT ASSESSMENT FOR FISCAL 

YEAR 2015-2016 FOR ASSESSMENT DISTRICTS 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Hughson intends to levy and collect 
assessments within assessment districts in the City of Hughson for Fiscal Year 2015-
2016, pursuant to the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 and the Benefit 
Assessment Act of 1982; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the improvement to be made in each district are generally described 
in Exhibit A, which is made a part of this resolution; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with this City Council’s Resolution No. 2015-11 
directing the filing of an annual report, Michael G. Pitcock, Engineer of Work, has filed 
with the City Clerk the report, as required by the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 
and the Benefit Assessment Act of 1982; and 
 
 WHEREAS, all interested persons are referred to that report for a full and 
detailed description of the improvements, the boundaries of each assessment district, 
and the proposed assessments upon assessable lots and parcels within each 
assessment district; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on Monday, the 13th day of July, at the hour of 7:00 p.m., the City 
Council of the City of Hughson will conduct a public hearing on the question of the levy 
of the proposed annual assessment for each district; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the public hearing will be held at Hughson City Hall located at 7018 
Pine Street in Hughson, California. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Clerk is authorized and 
directed to give the notice of hearing required by the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 
1972 and the Benefit Assessment Act of 1982. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Hughson this 22nd day of June, 2015, by the following vote: 
  
 AYES: . 
 
 NOES: .  
 
 ABSTENTIONS: .  
  
 ABSENT: .  

 
 
 
 



        Resolution No. 2015-19 
Page 2  

 
 
________________________ 

     MATT BEEKMAN, Mayor  
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
DOMINIQUE SPINALE, City Clerk  
 
  



        Resolution No. 2015-19 
Page 3  

EXHIBIT A 
 

Assessment District Legal Description 

Central Hughson 

Central Hughson differs for the other districts in that is was 
formed and annexed to in accordance with parcel 
circumstances, type or other specific purpose as indicated by 
the original engineer’s report. Consequently, a general 
description of locations is not practical. Assessments also differ 
in that they are formulated in most respects by parcel specific 
attributes rather than equal distribution to all included parcels. 

Brittany Woods 

The maintenance and replacement of street trees, plants, 
vegetation, sprinkler systems, rear yard wall adjacent to or 
within the public right of way, street lighting, improvements, and 
appurtenances adjacent to or within the public right of way in 
the streets south of the Turlock Irrigation District Ceres Main 
Canal, and south of Hatch Road, and east of Seventh Street, 
within the boundaries of Tract 085 (Brittany Woods), and 
includes Assessor’s Parcel Numbers for lots 081-085-001 
through 018-085-066 inclusive and Lot “A” as recorded in Book 
40 of Maps, Page 73, of Stanislaus County Records.  

Euclid North 

The maintenance and replacement of street trees, plants, 
vegetation, sprinkler systems, rear yard wall adjacent to or 
within the public right of way, street lighting, improvements, and 
appurtenances adjacent to or within the public right of way in 
the streets of the south half of Tract 20, west of Euclid Avenue, 
bordered on the west by the Brittany Woods Subdivision, on the 
north by the Euclid North Subdivision, and on the east by Euclid 
Avenue, and on the south by the Fontana North Subdivision.  

Euclid South 

The maintenance and replacement of street trees, plants, 
vegetation, sprinkler systems, rear yard wall adjacent to or 
within the public right of way, street lighting, improvements, and 
appurtenances adjacent to or within the public right of way in 
the streets of the south half of Tract 20, west of Euclid Avenue, 
bordered on the west by the Starn Estates Subdivision, and on 
the north by the Euclid North Subdivision, and on the east by 
Euclid Avenue, and on the south by the Fontana North 
Subdivision. 

Fontana Ranch North 

The maintenance and replacement of street trees, plants, 
vegetation, sprinkler systems, rear yard wall adjacent to or 
within the public right of way, street lighting, improvements, and 
appurtenances adjacent to or within the public right of way in 
the streets of Tract 22, west of Euclid Avenue, north of Fox 
Road, south of the Euclid South Subdivision, and east of the 
Fox Glen Subdivision. 



        Resolution No. 2015-19 
Page 4  

Assessment District Legal Description 

Fontana Ranch South 

The maintenance and replacement of street trees, plants, 
vegetation, sprinkler systems, rear yard wall adjacent to or 
within the public right of way, street lighting, improvements, and 
appurtenances adjacent to or within the public right of way in 
the streets of Tract 24 south of Fox Road, west of Samaritan 
Village Facility, north of the extension of Locust Street, and east 
of the Bavaro Subdivision. 

Feathers Glenn 

The maintenance and replacement of street trees, plants, 
vegetation, sprinkler systems, rear yard wall adjacent to or 
within the public right of way, street lighting, improvements, and 
appurtenances adjacent to or within the public right of way in 
the streets south of the Rhapsody Subdivisions, and consists of 
those lots served by Metcalf Way between Charles Street and 
Seventh Street, and the Feathers and Adeline Courts. 

Rhapsody Unit No. 1 

The maintenance and replacement of street trees, plants, 
vegetation, sprinkler systems, rear yard wall adjacent to or 
within the public right of way, street lighting, improvements, and 
appurtenances adjacent to or within the public right of way in 
the streets south of the Turlock Irrigation District Ceres Main 
Canal, and south of Hatch Road, and west of Seventh Street, 
within the boundaries of Tracts 086 and 087 (Rhapsody), and 
includes Assessor’s Parcel Numbers for lots 018-086-001 
through 018-086-042 inclusive, and 018-087-001 through 018-
087-037 inclusive and Lots “A” and “B” as recorded in Book 40 
of Maps, Page 74, Stanislaus County Records. 

Rhapsody Unit No. 2 

The maintenance and replacement of street trees, plants, 
vegetation, sprinkler systems, rear yard wall adjacent to or 
within the public right of way, street lighting, improvements, and 
appurtenances adjacent to or within the public right of way in 
the streets south of the Turlock Irrigation District Ceres Main 
Canal, and south of Hatch Road, and west of Seventh Street, 
within the boundaries of Tracts 086 and 087 (Rhapsody), and 
includes Assessor’s Parcel Numbers for lots 018-086-044 
through 018-086-078 inclusive, and 018-087-039 through 018-
087-062 inclusive and Lots “A” and “B” as recorded in Book 40 
of Maps, Page 74, Stanislaus County Records. 

Santa Fe Estates 
Phase 1 

The maintenance and replacement of street trees, plants, 
vegetation, sprinkler systems, rear yard wall adjacent to or 
within the public right of way, street lighting, streets, 
improvements and appurtenances adjacent to or within the 
public right of way in the streets east of Santa Fe Avenue,  
within Tract 083 (Santa Fe Estates Phase 1), and includes 
Assessor’s Parcel Numbers for lots 018-083-001 through 018-
083-055 inclusive as recorded in Book 40 of Maps, Page 56, of 
Stanislaus County Records.  



        Resolution No. 2015-19 
Page 5  

Assessment District Legal Description 

Santa Fe Estates 
Phase 2 

The maintenance and replacement of street trees, plants, 
vegetation, sprinkler systems, rear yard wall adjacent to or 
within the public right of way, street lighting, improvements, and 
appurtenances adjacent to or within the public right of way in 
the streets east of Santa Fe Avenue, within Tract 084 (Santa Fe 
Estates Phase 2), and includes Assessor’s Parcel Numbers for 
lots 018-084-002 through 018-084-053 inclusive and “Lot B” as 
recorded in Book 10 of Maps, Page 38, of Stanislaus County 
Records. 

Starn Estates 

The maintenance and replacement of street trees, plants, 
vegetation, sprinkler systems, rear yard wall adjacent to or 
within the public right of way, street lighting, improvements, and 
appurtenances adjacent to or within the public right of way in 
the streets south of the Brittany Woods Landscaping and 
Lighting District, east of Seventh Street, within Tract 081 (Starn 
Estates Phase 1 and 2), and includes Assessor’s Parcel 
Numbers for lots 018-081-001 through 018-081-037 inclusive 
and lots 018-081-039 through 018-081-079 inclusive as 
recorded in Book 40 of Maps, Page 21, Stanislaus County 
Records. 

Sterling Glen III 

The maintenance and replacement of street trees, plants, 
vegetation, sprinkler systems, rear yard wall adjacent to or 
within the public right of way, street lighting systems, 
improvements, and appurtenances adjacent to or within the 
public right of way in the streets west of Tully Road, east of 
Santa Fe Estates Phase II Subdivision, north of an industrial 
zone, and south of the Walnut Haven Subdivision. 

Sun Glow Estates 

The maintenance and replacement of street trees, plants, 
vegetation, sprinkler systems, rear yard wall adjacent to or 
within the public right of way, street lighting, improvements, and 
appurtenances adjacent to or within the public right of way in 
the streets east of Tully Road and directly south of the Walnut 
Haven III Landscaping and Lighting District, within Tract 082 
(Sun Glow Estates), and includes Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 
for lots 018-082-001 through 018-082-090 inclusive as recorded 
in Book 39 of Maps, Page 98, of Stanislaus County Records. 

Walnut Haven III 

The maintenance and replacement of street trees, plants, 
vegetation, sprinkler systems, rear yard wall adjacent to or 
within the public right of way, street lighting, streets, 
improvements and appurtenances adjacent to or within the 
public right of way in the streets east of Tully Road and west of 
Charles Street, directly north of the Sun Glow Landscaping and 
Lighting District, within Tract 088 (Walnut Haven III), and 
includes Assessor’s Parcel Numbers for lots 018-088-055 
inclusive as recorded in Book 40 of Maps, Page 76, of 
Stanislaus County Records. 

 



 

 

 
 
Meeting Date: June 22, 2015 
Subject: Approval of Resolution No. 2015-19, Declaring the City 

Council’s Intent to Levy and Collect Assessments for 
Fiscal Year 2015-2016 for the City of Hughson Landscape 
and Lighting Districts and Benefit Assessment Districts 
and to Set the Public Hearing for the July 13, 2015 City 
Council Meeting 

Presented By:  Jaylen French, Community Development Director  
 
Approved By: ______________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation:  
 
Adopt Resolution No. 2015-19, declaring the City Council’s intent to levy and 
collect assessments for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 for the City of Hughson Landscape 
and Lighting Districts (LLD) and Benefit Assessment Districts (BAD) and to set the 
Public Hearing for the July 13, 2014 City Council meeting. 
 
Background:   
 
The City of Hughson (“City”) utilizes special financing districts to provide various 
services and improvements to the property owners within the City. These are 
currently comprised of two types of assessments, Landscape and Lighting Districts 
and Benefit Assessment Districts.  Each Landscape and Lighting District (LLD) 
was formed and the annual assessments are levied pursuant to the Landscape 
and Lighting Act of 1972, Part 2 of Division 15 of the California Streets and 
Highways Code (the “1972 Act”).  Each Benefit Assessment District (BAD) was 
formed and the annual assessments are levied pursuant to the Benefit 
Assessment Act of 1982 (the “1982 Act”), Part 1 of Division 2 of the California 
Government Code. 
 
The City annually reviews the anticipated costs of each district for the next fiscal 
year, establishes assessments attributable to each parcel, and orders such 
assessments to be levied through the County property tax roll. This Engineer’s 
Benefit Assessment Report (“Report”) describes the districts, incorporates any 
annexations or changes to the districts, the proposed assessments and the levies 
for Fiscal Year 2014-2015. The proposed assessments and levies are based on 
the historical and estimated costs of providing services to maintain the 

 

CITY OF HUGHSON AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.1 
SECTION 6: NEW BUSINESS 



improvements that provide a direct and special benefit to properties within each 
respective district. 
 
The costs of the improvements and the annual levies include all expenditures, 
deficits, surpluses, revenues, and reserves.  Parcels are assessed proportionately 
for the special benefit provided by the district. 
 
For the purposes of this staff report, the word “parcel” refers to an individual 
property assigned its own Assessor’s Parcel Number by the Stanislaus County 
Assessor’s Office. The Stanislaus County Auditor-Controller uses Assessor’s 
Parcel Numbers and specific fund numbers to identify properties assessed on the 
County Secured Property Tax Roll (the “Tax Roll”).   
 
Following final approval of the Engineer’s Report and confirmation of the 
assessments, the City Council may order the levy and the collection of the 
assessments for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 pursuant to the 1972 and 1982 Acts. In 
such case, the assessment information will be submitted to the County Auditor-
Controller, by mid-August, to be included on the Tax Roll for each benefiting parcel 
for Fiscal Year 2015-2016. 
 
The intent of this item is to declare the Council’s intent to levy and collect 
assessments. The next step in this process—actual levying of the assessment—
will be brought to the City Council at the July 13, 2015 regular meeting for final 
approval. 
 
Summary of Proposed Assessments for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 
 
The following is a summary of the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 proposed assessments 
as set forth in the Report and per equivalent dwelling unit (EDU).  City staff has 
worked with City of Turlock Municipal Services Department under a new 
partnership, formally approved by each respective City Council on April 14 and 22, 
2014 for administrative and engineering services associated with the LLD and 
BAD.  Part of this new collaborative effort has included a collective review of 
original formation documents, a validation of assessment rate history, a clear 
definition of program budgets based on actual costs incurred, and a discussion of 
effective ways to address deficiencies over time.   
 
In preparation for the annual assessment process for the upcoming fiscal year, City 
of Turlock staff recreated the appropriate current assessment levels for each 
district by retracing previous calculated amounts and incorporating technical 
adjustments.  Although there were some minor discrepancies, none of the districts 
exceed their approved maximum rates.  Additionally, City of Hughson staff has 
also spent considerable time this past year 1) balancing allocation of costs, where 
possible, in districts with both LLD and BADs, 2) exploring general versus special 
benefit methodologies, 3) monitoring individual districts and actual costs incurred 
and implementing efficiencies where possible (e.g., reducing water usage, 
validating lighting inventory, adjusting maintenance schedules).  The information 
collected is critical for the purposes of determining the true cost of providing 
services and better understanding the condition of each respective district.  
 



A review of expenditures through the end of April has revealed that expenses are 
tracking lower than anticipated in most cases which should strengthen fund 
balance amounts in preparation for the Fiscal Year 2015-2016.   
 
City of Hughson staff will continue work in other areas through the upcoming fiscal 
year including minimizing administrative costs, proposing infrastructure 
improvements, as permitted, in districts with no structural deficits and healthy 
reserves.                  
 
Brittany Woods 
 
Brittany Woods lies south of the Turlock Irrigation District Ceres Main Canal, and 
south of Hatch Road, and east of Seventh Street, within the boundaries of Tract 
085 (Brittany Woods), and includes Assessor’s Parcel Numbers for lots 018-085-
001 through 018-085-066 inclusive and Lot “A” as recorded in Book 40 of Maps, 
Page 73, of Stanislaus County Records.  Brittany Woods currently has 65 
equivalent dwelling units. 
 
Landscape and Lighting District  
 
Balance to Levy:     $7,866.00  
Maximum Rate per EDU:    $121.02  
Estimated Fund Balance (05/31/15):  $7,331 
 
Central Hughson 
 
Central Hughson differs for the other districts in that it was formed and annexed to 
in accordance with parcel circumstances, type or other specific purpose as 
indicated by the original engineer’s report. Consequently, a general description of 
locations is not practical. Assessments also differ in that they are formulated in 
most respects by parcel specific attributes rather than equal distribution to all 
included parcels.  There are currently 208 parcels in the Benefit Assessment 
District and 43 parcels in the Landscape and Lighting District. 
 
Landscape and Lighting District  
 
Balance to Levy:      $14,107.37 
Maximum Rates*:      $35.19 - $964.88 (low and high) 
Estimated Fund Balance (05/31/15):  $11,649 
 
*Based on landscaping (by area), maintenance of trees (by unit allocation to 
parcels), streetlights, parking area lights, etc. 
 
Benefit Assessment District 
 
Balance to Levy:      $31,414.27 
Maximum Rates*:      $20.68 - $2,024.46 (low and high) 
Estimated Fund Balance (05/31/15):  $42,869 
 
* Based on storm water drain street frontage, sidewalks by area, road 



maintenance, graffiti removal (per parcel), street sweeping by curb miles, etc. 
 
 
Euclid North 
 
Euclid North is a portion of the south half of Tract 20, west of Euclid Avenue, 
bordered on the west by the Brittany Woods Subdivision, on the north by the Euclid 
North Subdivision, and on the east by Euclid Avenue, and on the south by the 
Fontana North Subdivision. Euclid North currently has 50 equivalent dwelling units.   
 
Landscape and Lighting District (Formed But Not Developed)  
 
Balance to Levy:      $0 
Maximum Rate per EDU:     $0 
Estimated Fund Balance (05/31/15):   $0 
 
Benefit Assessment District 
 
Balance to Levy:      $0 
Maximum Rate per EDU:     $0 
Estimated Fund Balance (05/31/15):   $0 
 
Euclid South 
 
Euclid South is a portion of the south half of Tract 20, west of Euclid Avenue, 
bordered on the west by the Starn Estates Subdivision, and on the north by the 
Euclid North Subdivision, and on the east by Euclid Avenue, and on the south by 
the Fontana North Subdivision.  Euclid South currently has 69 equivalent dwelling 
units. 
 
Landscape and Lighting District (Formed But Not Developed)   
 
Balance to Levy:      $0 
Maximum Rate per EDU:     $0 
Estimated Fund Balance (05/31/15):   $0 
 
Benefit Assessment District 
 
Balance to Levy:      $0 
Maximum Rate per EDU:     $0 
Estimated Fund Balance (05/31/15):   $0 
 
Feathers Glen 
 
Feathers Glen lies directly south of the Rhapsody Subdivisions, and consists of 
those lots served by Metcalf Way between Charles Street and Seventh Street, and 
the Feathers and Adeline Courts. Feathers Glen current has 42 equivalent dwelling 
units. 
 
  



Landscape and Lighting District  
 
Balance to Levy:      $14,534.41 
Maximum Rate per EDU:     $346.06 
Estimated Fund Balance (05/31/15):  $30,470 
 
 
Benefit Assessment District 
 
Balance to Levy:      $8,564.61 
Maximum Rate per EDU:     $203.92  
Estimated Fund Balance (05/31/15):   $3,775 
 
Fontana Ranch North 
 
Fontana Ranch North is a portion of Tract 22, west of Euclid Avenue, north of Fox 
Road, south of the Euclid South Subdivision, and east of the Fox Glen Subdivision.  
Fontana Ranch North currently has 91 equivalent dwelling units. 
 
Landscape and Lighting District  
 
Balance to Levy:      $18,668.68 
Maximum Rate per EDU:    $205.15  
Estimated Fund Balance (05/31/15):  $16,783 
 
Benefit Assessment District 
 
Balance to Levy:      $19,510.14 
Maximum Rate per EDU:     $214.40  
Estimated Fund Balance (05/31/15):   $36,981 
 
Fontana Ranch South 
 
Fontana Ranch South is a portion of Tract 24 south of Fox Road, west of 
Samaritan Village Facility, north of the extension of Locust Street, and east of the 
Bavaro Subdivision.  Fontana Ranch South currently has 56 equivalent dwelling 
units. 
 
Landscape and Lighting District  
 
Balance to Levy:      $10,888.53 
Maximum Rate per EDU:     $194.44  
Estimated Fund Balance (05/31/15):  $(27,866) 
 
Benefit Assessment District 
 
Balance to Levy:      $9,974.71 
Maximum Rate per EDU:     $178.12  
Estimated Fund Balance (05/31/15):   $5,732 
 



Rhapsody Unit No. 1 
 
Rhapsody Unit No. 1 lies south of the Turlock Irrigation District Ceres Main Canal, 
and south of Hatch Road, and west of Seventh Street, within the boundaries of 
Tracts 086 and 087 (Rhapsody), and includes Assessor’s Parcel Numbers for lots 
018-086-001 through 018-086-042 inclusive, and 018- 087-001 through 018-087-
037 inclusive and Lots “A” and “B” as recorded in Book 40 of Maps, Page 74, 
Stanislaus County Records.  Rhapsody Unit No. 1 currently has 79 equivalent 
dwelling units. 
 
Landscape and Lighting District  
 
Balance to Levy:      $6,239.64 
Maximum Rate per EDU:     $78.98  
Estimated Fund Balance (05/31/15):  $3,734 
 
Rhapsody Unit No. 2 
 
Rhapsody Unit No. 2 lies south of the Turlock Irrigation District Ceres Main Canal, 
and south of Hatch Road, and west of Seventh Street, within the boundaries of 
Tracts 086 and 087 (Rhapsody), and includes Assessor’s Parcel Numbers for lots 
018-086-044 through 018-086-078 inclusive, and 018- 087-039 through 018-087-
062 inclusive and Lots “A” and “B” as recorded in Book 40 of Maps, Page 74, 
Stanislaus County Records.  Rhapsody Unit No. 2 currently has 59 equivalent 
dwelling units. 
 
Landscape and Lighting District  
 
Balance to Levy:      $6,500.44 
Maximum Rate per EDU:     $110.18 
Estimated Fund Balance (05/31/15):  $2,670 
 
Santa Fe Estates Phase 1 
 
Santa Fe Estates Phase 1 lies east of Santa Fe Avenue, within Tract 083 (Santa 
Fe Estates Phase 1), and includes Assessor’s Parcel Numbers for lots 018-083-
001 through 018-083-055 inclusive as recorded in Book 40 of Maps, Page 56, and 
Stanislaus County Records.  Santa Fe Estates Phase 1 currently has 55 equivalent 
dwelling units. 
 
Landscape and Lighting District  
 
Balance to Levy:     $7,229.52 
Maximum Rate per EDU:     $131.45 
Estimated Fund Balance (05/31/15):   $(21,916) 
 
  



Santa Fe Estates Phase 2 
 
Santa Fe Estates Phase 2 lies east of Santa Fe Avenue, within Tract 084 (Santa 
Fe Estates Phase 2), and includes Assessor’s Parcel Numbers for lots 018-084-
002 through 018-084-053 inclusive and “Lot B” as recorded in Book 10 of Maps, 
Page 38, of Stanislaus County Records.  Santa Fe Estates Phase 2 currently has 
51 equivalent dwelling units. 
 
Landscape and Lighting District  
 
Balance to Levy:     $6,649.88 
Maximum Rate per EDU:    $130.39 
Estimated Fund Balance (05/31/15):   $(8,647) 
 
Starn Estates 
 
Starn Estates lies directly south of the Brittany Woods Landscaping and Lighting 
District, east of Seventh Street, within Tract 081 (Starn Estates Phase 1 and 2), 
and includes Assessor’s Parcel Numbers for lots 018-081-001 through 018-081-
037 inclusive and lots 018-081-039 through 018-081- 079 inclusive as recorded in 
Book 40 of Maps, Page 21, Stanislaus County Records.  Starn Estates currently 
has 78 equivalent dwelling units. 
 
Landscape and Lighting District  
 
Balance to Levy:     $7,789.84 
Maximum Rate per EDU:    $99.87  
Estimated Fund Balance (05/31/15):   $17,849 
 
Sterling Glen III 
 
Sterling Glenn III is located west of Tully Road, east of Santa Fe Estates Phase II 
Subdivision, north of an industrial zone, and south of the Walnut Haven 
Subdivision, and includes Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 018-089-001 through 017-
089-073.  Sterling Glenn III currently has 73 / 1.7 equivalent dwelling units. 
 
 
Landscape and Lighting District   
 
Balance to Levy:      $16,312.00/$595.52 
Maximum Rate per EDU:     $223.45/$350.31 
Estimated Fund Balance (05/31/15):   $20,466 
 
Benefit Assessment District 
 
Balance to Levy:      $11,235.904/$436.10 
Maximum Rate per EDU:     $153.92/$256.53  
Estimated Fund Balance (05/31/15):   $7,327 
 
  



Sun Glow Estates 
 
Sun Glow Estates lies east of Tully Road and directly south of the Walnut Haven III 
Landscaping and Lighting District, within Tract 082 (Sun Glow Estates), and 
includes Assessor’s Parcel Numbers for lots 018-082-001 through 018-082-090 
inclusive as recorded in Book 39 of Maps, Page 98, of Stanislaus County Records.  
Sun Glow Estates currently has 91 equivalent dwelling units. 
 
Landscape and Lighting District  
 
Balance to Levy:      $9,680.00 
Maximum Rate per EDU:     $106.37 
Estimated Fund Balance (05/31/15):   $21,443 
 
Walnut Haven III 
 
Walnut Haven III lies east of Tully Road and west of Charles Street, directly north 
of the Sun Glow Landscaping and Lighting District, within Tract 088 (Walnut Haven 
III), and includes Assessor’s Parcel Numbers for lots 018-088-001 through 018-
088-055 inclusive as recorded in Book 40 of Maps, Page 76, of Stanislaus County 
Records.  Walnut Haven III currently has 55 equivalent dwelling units. 
 
Landscape and Lighting District  
 
Balance to Levy:      $5,962.80 
Maximum Rate per EDU:     $108.41  
Estimated Fund Balance (05/31/15):  $4,025 
 
Annual Inflationary Adjustment: 
 
Increases to the annual assessment and levy are indexed to the Consumer Price 
Index plus three percent based on the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor 
Statistics, reported by the San Francisco/Oakland/San José Urban Wage Earners 
and Clerical Workers increase. This will annually establish the new inflation 
adjusted maximum assessment that may be levied without the necessity of 
conducting a Proposition 218 ballot proceeding. Although the maximum rate is 
likely to increase each year, the actual amount to be assessed is based on the 
annual budget and may be less than the maximum rate.  Not all of the City’s 
Districts include annual inflationary adjustments.  
 
Environmental Review: 
 
This is an administrative action which is not considered a ‘project’ under the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).  
 
Public Participation: 
 
Public participation is provided pursuant to the provisions of Proposition 218. 
Changes which require an affirming ballot process are not involved in this action.  



The scheduled Public Hearing provides impacted property owners the opportunity 
to address the Council regarding any proposed changes to their assessments.   
 
Public Hearing Schedule: 
 
Upon adoption of this Resolution, a Public Hearing will be set for July 13, 2014.  At 
that time, the City Council will have the opportunity to review and approve the 
annual Engineer’s Benefit Assessment Report for the Landscape and Lighting 
Districts and Benefit Assessment Districts as well as confirm the assessment and 
order the levy for the districts. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
The current Landscape and Lighting Districts and Benefit Assessment Districts 
provide the City of Hughson with funding annually to offset the costs of specific 
services and improvements to properties within their respective approved 
boundaries.  For Fiscal Year 2015-2016, annual assessments are expected to 
generate approximately $208,000 for associated labor, administration, utilities, 
equipment, materials, and preparation of the annual Engineer’s Report.   
 
The City of Turlock Municipal Services Department provides technical 
administrative support to the City of Hughson and its Landscape and Lighting 
Districts and Benefit Assessment Districts.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 



 

 

 
 
Meeting Date:         June 22, 2015 
Subject:    Post-Issuance Compliance Procedures for 
                         Tax-Advantaged Bonds 
Presented By:  Shannon Esenwein, Director of Finance                  

Lisa Whiteside, Finance Manager 
     
Approved By:         _______________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Adopt Resolution No. 2015-20, adopting Tax-Advantaged Bonds Post-Issuance 
Compliance Procedures. 

Background and Overview: 
 
The City of Hughson, acting as the Successor Agency to the Hughson Redevelopment 
Agency, intends to issue its 2015 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds (the “2015 Bonds”) in 
July of 2015, the interest on which will be excluded from bondowner’s gross income for 
federal income tax purposes.  Issuers of tax-exempt bonds are required to comply with 
certain post issuance requirements in accordance with the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 
(the “Code”). 
 
Discussion: 
 
The Tax Advantaged Bonds Post-Issuance Compliance Procedures (the “Procedures”, 
attached as Exhibit A), will assist the City to monitor compliance with certain Post-
Issuance requirements of the Code. 

The Procedures describe responsible Officers and Employees, periodic reviews, 
recordkeeping, investment and expenditure guidelines, reporting requirements, and 
related activities.  In some cases, consulting firms may be engaged to perform specific 
activities, such as rebate calculations to determine if there are any excess investment 
earnings from the funds and accounts of the 2015 Bonds. 

Fiscal Impact:  
 
City staff will be required to periodically review compliance under the Procedures.  A 

 

CITY OF HUGHSON AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.2 
SECTION 6: NEW BUSINESS 



consultant may be engaged to prepare investment earnings rebate calculations.  
Associated costs will be included for completion of these tasks in the City’s annual budget 
process.  



 A-1  
12917-0002\1807064v1.doc 

CITY OF HUGHSON 
 CITY COUNCIL  

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-20 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUGHSON ADOPTING TAX-
ADVANTAGED BONDS POST-ISSUANCE COMPLIANCE PROCEDURES 

 
RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, the City of Hughson (the “City”), a municipal corporation duly formed and 
existing under the laws of the State of California, has issued bonds or otherwise incurred 
bonded indebtedness (“Tax-Exempt Bonds”), the interest on which is excluded from gross 
income for owners thereof for federal income tax purposes pursuant to the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”); and 

WHEREAS, the City intends to issue additional Tax-Exempt Bonds from time to time; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City may also, in the future, issue bonds or incur bonded indebtedness 
(“Tax Credit Bonds,” and together with Tax-Exempt Bonds, “Tax-Advantaged Bonds”) that 
entitle the City, the owners of the Tax Credit Bonds or another party to either a credit against 
federal income tax liability or a refundable credit from the United States Treasury; and 

WHEREAS, issuers of Tax-Advantaged Bonds are required to comply with certain post 
issuance requirements in accordance with the Code; and 

WHEREAS, as a matter of internal controls, the City desires to adopt the Tax-
Advantaged Bonds Post-Issuance Compliance Procedures (the “Procedures”), as set forth in 
Exhibit A hereto; 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUGHSON DOES 
HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The above recitals, and each of them, are true and correct. 

Section 2. The Procedures, as set forth in Exhibit A, are hereby approved and 
adopted and shall be made applicable to all Tax-Advantaged Bonds issued by or on behalf of 
the City and its related entities (such as the City of Hughson Joint Powers Financing Authority 
and the Successor Agency to the Hughson Redevelopment Agency). 

Section 3. The City Manager, in consultation with bond counsel, is hereby 
authorized to amend the Procedures from time to time as necessary or appropriate. 

Section 4. The City Manager, the Director of Finance, and all other officers of the 
City are hereby authorized and directed, jointly and severally, to do any and all things, to 
effectuate the purposes of this Resolution and to implement the Procedures any such actions 
previously taken by such officers are hereby ratified and confirmed. 



Section 5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Hughson this 
22nd day of June, 2015, by the following vote: 
  
 AYES: . 
 
 NOES: .  
 
 ABSTENTIONS: .  
  
 ABSENT: .  
 
 

________________________ 
     MATT BEEKMAN, Mayor  

ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
DOMINIQUE SPINALE, City Clerk 



EXHIBIT A 
 

City of Hughson 
Tax-Advantaged Bonds Post-Issuance Compliance Procedures 

 
 

 -1-  
12917-0002\1807062v1.doc 

TAX-ADVANTAGED BONDS POST-ISSUANCE COMPLIANCE PROCEDURES 

1. BACKGROUND AND TRAINING 

Bonds that receive preferential treatment under federal law are commonly referred to by 
the Internal Revenue Service as “tax-advantaged bonds”.  These bonds are issued by or on behalf 
of state and local governments, such as the City of Hughson and its related public entities such as 
the City of Hughson Joint Powers Financing Authority and the Successor Agency to the 
Hughson Redevelopment Agency.  These bonds are subject to federal tax requirements both at 
the time the bonds are issued and for as long as they remain outstanding.  An issuer’s (or other 
party’s) failure to comply with any applicable federal tax requirement with respect to these bonds 
jeopardizes their preferential treatment. 

While compliance with applicable federal tax requirements normally occurs at closing, 
other federal tax requirements require on-going monitoring after the issuance of the bonds.  
These requirements include filing a Form 8038 information return (8038-G for fully tax-exempt 
bonds, 8038-GC for fully tax-exempt bonds with an issue price of less than $100,000, 8038 for 
tax-exempt (“qualified”) private activity bonds, 8038-B for Build America Bonds, or 8038-TC 
for tax credit bonds, such as qualified school construction bonds) and the issuer having 
reasonable expectations of on-going, post-issuance compliance.   

Post-issuance federal tax requirements generally fall into two categories:  (1) the use of 
proceeds and the use of bond-financed property; and (2) arbitrage yield restriction on 
investments and rebate.  Use requirements require monitoring of the various direct and indirect 
uses of bond-financed property over the life of the bonds and calculations of the percentage of 
nonqualified uses.  Arbitrage requirements also require monitoring over the life of the bonds to 
determine whether both the yield on investments acquired with bond proceeds are properly 
restricted and whether the City must file a Form 8038-T to pay a rebate or a yield reduction 
payment. 

Post-issuance compliance procedures will help the City monitor compliance as long as 
the bonds remain outstanding and improve the City’s ability to identify noncompliance and 
prevent violations from occurring, or timely correct identified violations, to ensure the continued 
tax-advantaged status of the bonds. 

The designated officer or employee (described in Section 2.A, below) and anyone 
assigned particular responsibilities in connection with the procedures described below must read 
the certificate regarding compliance with certain tax matters (commonly referred to as the “tax 
certificate”) that is executed by the City in connection with each bond issue for a more complete 
explanation of the matters described in these Procedures.  In addition, the designated officer or 
employee and anyone assigned particular responsibilities, should discuss these matters with bond 
counsel and must meet with bond counsel for training related to these Procedures.   

2. GENERAL ADMINISTRATION 



 -2-  
12917-0002\1807062v1.doc 

A. Responsible Officers or Employees.  The City Manager will designate the officer 
(e.g., the Director of Finance) or employee who will be responsible for compliance with each of 
the procedures set forth below.  The City Manager will notify the current holder of that office, or 
the employee, of the responsibilities and provide that person a copy of these Procedures.  The 
holder of the office, or the employee, may in turn designate other officers or employees and 
assign to them particular responsibilities for certain of these Procedures.  Qualified consultants 
may assist in conducting the compliance procedures.  The City Manager will be notified in 
writing of all such designations and assignments.   

B. Reassignment of Responsibilities.  Upon the transition of a designated officer or 
employee, the City Manager will advise the new officer or employee of the responsibilities under 
these procedures.  If officer or employee positions are restructured or eliminated, the City 
Manager, or his or her designee will reassign responsibilities as necessary to ensure that all of the 
procedures listed below have been appropriately assigned. 

C. Periodic Reviews.  The designated officer or employee will conduct periodic 
reviews of compliance with these procedures and with the terms of any existing tax certificate 
relating to outstanding tax-advantaged bonds, such as fully tax-exempt bonds or Build America 
Bonds, to determine whether any violations have occurred.  Such periodic reviews will occur at 
least once every six months.  In the event that violations have occurred, bond counsel will be 
contacted immediately so that violations can be remedied through the remedial actions set forth 
in Section 1.141-12 of the Treasury Regulations, the Voluntary Closing Agreement Program 
described in IRS Notice 2008-31, or further guidance as may be provided by the IRS.  Where 
necessary, violations will be reported to the IRS by submitting a VCAP request within 90 days 
after identification of the violation. 

D. Changes or Modifications to Bond Terms.  If any change or modification to the 
terms of tax-advantaged bonds is contemplated, the designated officer or employee will 
immediately contact bond counsel (a change or modification could result in a reissuance, which 
in the case of BABs, for example, would constitute a refunding of the BABs and thereby 
jeopardize their status). 

E. Recordkeeping.  For each issue of tax-advantaged bonds, the designated officer or 
employee will:  

(1) maintain a copy of the transcript of the documents relating to the bonds. 

(2) maintain records of all facilities and other costs (e.g., issuance costs, credit 
enhancement fees and capitalized interest) and uses (e.g., deposits to project funds and reserve 
funds) for which bond proceeds were spent or used (in the case of a qualified private activity 
bond, the conduit borrower will be responsible for providing the City with this information); 

(3) maintain records of investments and expenditures of bond proceeds, rebate 
exception analyses, rebate calculations, Forms 8038-T, and rebate and yield reduction payments, 
and any other records relevant to compliance with arbitrage restrictions (in the case of a qualified 
private activity bond, the borrower will be responsible for providing the City with this 
information in the event it is not otherwise available to the City); 



 -3-  
12917-0002\1807062v1.doc 

(4) maintain all records described in these Procedures while any bonds of the 
issue are outstanding and during the three-year period following the final maturity or redemption 
of the bond issue or, if later, while any bonds that refund bonds of that original issue are 
outstanding and for the three year period following the final maturity or redemption date of the 
latest refunding bond issue; and 

(5) maintain copies of all of the following contracts or arrangements with 
non-governmental persons or organizations or with the federal government: (a) the sale of any 
bond-financed facility; (b) the lease of any bond-financed facility (other than individual tenant 
leases in the case of qualified private activity multifamily rental housing bonds); (c) management 
or service contracts relating to a bond-financed facility (other than those entered into in 
connection with qualified private activity bonds); (d) research contracts involving research 
undertaken in a bond-financed facility (other than those entered into in connection with qualified 
private activity bonds); and (e) any other contracts involving “special legal entitlements” (such 
as naming rights or exclusive provider arrangements) with respect to a bond-financed facility 
(other than those entered into in connection with qualified private activity bonds). 

3. IRS INFORMATION RETURN FILING 

In cooperation with bond counsel, the designated officer or employee will ensure that the 
Form 8038-G (or other applicable Form 8038) is timely filed (on or before the 15th day of the 
second calendar month after the end of the quarter in which the bonds were issued) with respect 
to each tax-advantaged bond issue, including any required schedules and attachments.   

4. INVESTMENT AND EXPENDITURE OF BOND PROCEEDS AND REBATE 

A. Track Investments and Expenditures.  The designated officer or employee will 
ensure the existence of an established accounting procedure for tracking the investment and the 
timely expenditures of bond proceeds, including investment earnings. 

B. Reimbursement.  Upon issuance of the bonds, the designated officer or employee 
will allocate bond proceeds to reimbursement of prior expenditures (assuming, if required, an 
appropriate declaration of intent to reimburse has been adopted).  In the case of qualified private 
activity bonds, the designated officer or employee shall rely on information provided by the 
conduit borrower. 

C. Final Allocations.  The designated officer or employee will ensure that a final 
allocation of bond proceeds (including investment earnings) to qualifying expenditures is made if 
bond proceeds are to be allocated to project expenditures on a basis other than “direct tracing” 
(direct tracing means treating the bond proceeds as spent as shown in the accounting records for 
bond draws and project expenditures).  This allocation must be made within 18 months after the 
later of the date the expenditure was made or the date the project was placed in service, but not 
later than the earlier of five years and 60 days after the issuance date of the bonds or 60 days 
after the bond issue is retired. In the case of qualified private activity bonds, the designated 
officer or employee shall rely on information provided by the conduit borrower, which shall be 
required to provide such information within the timeframe described in the preceding section. 



 -4-  
12917-0002\1807062v1.doc 

D. Timely Expenditure of Bond Proceeds.  Mindful of the expectations regarding the 
timing of the expenditures of bond proceeds set forth in the tax certificate, the designated officer 
or employee will monitor expenditures of bond proceeds, including investment earnings, against 
issuance date expectations for satisfaction of three-year (or five-year) temporary period from 
yield restriction on investment of bond proceeds. In the case of qualified private activity bonds, 
the conduit borrower shall be required to comply with this section. 

E. Yield.  The designated officer or employee will make note of the “yield” of the 
bond issue, as shown on the Form 8038-G, 8038-B or other applicable Form 8038. 

F. Temporary Periods and Yield Restriction.  The designated officer or employee 
will review the tax certificate to determine the “temporary periods” for the bond issue, during 
which periods various categories of gross proceeds of the bond issue may be invested without 
restriction as to yield. In the case of qualified private activity bonds, the conduit borrower shall 
be required to comply with this section. 

G. Investment of Proceeds and Yield Restriction.  The designated officer or 
employee will ensure that bond proceeds are not invested in investments with a yield above the 
bond yield following the end of the applicable temporary period unless yield reduction payments 
are to be made. In the case of qualified private activity bonds, the conduit borrower shall be 
required to comply with this section. 

H. Bidding Requirements.  If purchasing investments other than publicly traded 
securities for immediate delivery (for example, a guaranteed investment contract or certificates 
of deposit), the designated officer or employee will consult with bond counsel to ensure that 
investments of bond proceeds satisfy IRS regulatory safe harbors for establishing fair market 
value (e.g., through the use of bidding procedures), and maintain records to demonstrate 
satisfaction of such safe harbors. In the case of qualified private activity bonds, the conduit 
borrower shall be required to comply with this section. 

I. Credit Enhancement and Hedging Transactions.  The designated officer or 
employee will consult with bond counsel before engaging in credit enhancement or hedging 
transactions with respect to a bond issue.  The designated officer or employee will maintain 
copies of all contracts and certificates relating to credit enhancement and hedging transactions. 

J. Debt Service Fund.  After all proceeds of a bond issue have been spent, the 
designated officer or employee will ensure that the debt service fund meets the requirements of a 
“bona fide debt service fund,” i.e., one used primarily to achieve a proper matching of revenues 
with debt service that is depleted at least once each bond year, except for a reasonable carryover 
amount not to exceed the greater of (i) the investment earnings on the fund for the immediately 
preceding bond year; or (ii) one-twelfth of the debt service on the bond issue for the immediately 
preceding bond year.  To the extent that a debt service fund qualifies as a bona fide debt service 
fund for a given bond year, the investment of amounts held in that fund is not subject to yield 
restriction for that year.  The designated officer or employee will consult with bond counsel 
before creating separate additional funds that are expected to be used to pay debt service on the 
bonds. In the case of qualified private activity bonds, the conduit borrower shall be required to 
comply with this section. 



 -5-  
12917-0002\1807062v1.doc 

K. Reserve Fund.  The designated officer or employee will ensure that amounts of 
bond proceeds invested in any reasonably required reserve fund do not exceed the least of (each 
determined at the time of issuance of the bonds): (i) ten percent of the stated principal amount of 
the bonds (or the sale proceeds of the bond issue if the bond issue has original issue discount or 
original issue premium that exceeds two percent of the stated principal of the bond issue plus, in 
the case of premium, reasonable underwriter’s compensation); (ii) maximum annual debt service 
on the bond issue; or (iii) 125 percent of average annual debt service on the bond issue. In the 
case of qualified private activity bonds, the conduit borrower shall be required to comply with 
this section. 

L. Escrow Fund.  For an advance refunding escrow (where the escrow is established 
90 or more days before the refunded bonds are to be redeemed) funded with taxable open market 
securities earning yields higher than the yield of the advance refunding bonds, assure that all or 
part of the escrow is invested in zero interest rate SLGS issued by the U.S. Treasury Department 
if needed to blend down the yield. 

M. Gifts for Bond-Financed Projects.  Before beginning a campaign that may result 
in gifts that will be restricted for use relating to a bond-financed facility (or, in the absence of 
such a campaign, upon the receipt of such restricted gifts), the designated officer or employee 
will consult with bond counsel to determine whether replacement proceeds may result.  

N. Performance of Rebate Calculations.  Subject to the small issuer exception and 
the exceptions described in the tax certificate, investment earnings on bond proceeds at a yield in 
excess of the bond yield generally must be rebated to the United States.  The designated officer 
or employee will ensure that rebate calculations will be timely performed and payment of rebate 
amounts, if any, will be timely made.  Rebate payments are generally due 60 days after the fifth 
anniversary of the issuance date of the bond issue, then in succeeding installments every five 
years.  The final rebate payment is due 60 days after retirement (or early redemption) of the last 
bond of the issue. In the case of qualified private activity bonds, the conduit borrower shall be 
required to comply with this section. 

O. Rebate Consultant.  The designated officer or employee will engage the services 
of an experienced rebate consultant to undertake rebate calculations described above for each 
bond issue. In the case of qualified private activity bonds, the conduit borrower shall be required 
to comply with this section. 

P. Spending Exceptions.  If the six-month, 18-month, or 24-month spending 
exceptions from the rebate requirement (as described in the tax certificate) apply to the bond 
issue, the designated officer or employee will ensure that the spending of bond proceeds is 
monitored prior to semi-annual spending dates for the applicable exception. 

Q. Follow-up on Rebate.  After all bond proceeds have been spent, the designated 
officer or employee will ensure compliance with rebate requirements for any reserve fund and 
any debt service fund that is not exempt from the rebate requirement. In the case of qualified 
private activity bonds, the conduit borrower shall be required to comply with this section. 



 -6-  
12917-0002\1807062v1.doc 

R. Filing of 8038-T.  The designated officer or employee will make rebate and yield 
reduction payments timely and file Form 8038-T.  

5. PRIVATE BUSINESS USE 

A. Private Business Use.  Use of bond proceeds or bond-financed property by a 
nongovernmental person (including the federal government) in furtherance of a trade or business 
activity is considered private business use.  Any activity carried on by other than a natural person 
(individual acting as a member of the general public) is treated as a trade or business.  Indirect 
uses of bond proceeds must also be considered in determining whether more than ten percent of 
the proceeds of a bond issue will be for a private business use.  For example, a facility is treated 
as being used for a private business use if it is sold or leased to a nongovernmental person and 
the nongovernmental person’s use is in a trade or business.  The designated officer or employee 
will analyze any private business use of bond-financed facilities and, for each issue of bonds, 
determine whether the ten percent limit on private business use (five percent in the case of 
“unrelated or disproportionate” private business use) is exceeded and immediately contact bond 
counsel if either of these limits is exceeded.  This section shall not apply to qualified private 
activity bonds. 

B. Management and Service Agreements.  Management contracts between 
governmental entities and certain private parties under which private parties receive 
compensation for services provided with respect to a bond-financed facility may result in private 
business use.  Before entering into any new management agreement or service agreement 
relating to bond-financed facilities, the designated officer or employee will immediately contact 
bond counsel to review any such agreement to determine whether it may result in private 
business use. This section shall not apply to qualified private activity bonds. 

C. Special Legal Entitlements.  Before entering into any agreement providing special 
legal entitlements relating to a bond-financing facility, the designated officer or employee will 
immediately contact bond counsel to review such agreement. This section shall not apply to 
qualified private activity bonds. 

6. PROCEDURES RELATING ONLY TO BUILD AMERICA BONDS AND TAX 
CREDIT BONDS 

A. Limit on Premium.  The designated officer or employee will consult with the 
financial advisor to ensure that the premium on each maturity (stated as a percentage of principal 
amount) does not exceed one-quarter of one-percent multiplied by the number of complete years 
to the earlier of the final maturity or, generally, the earliest optional redemption date for the 
bonds. 

B. Two Percent Costs of Issuance Limitation.  The designated officer or employee 
will consult with the financial advisor to ensure that the excess of the issue price (i.e., the stated 
principal amount of the bonds plus the original issue premium or less the original issue discount) 
over the price at which the bond issue is sold to the investors at the initial bond offering, when 
combined with other issuance costs paid from bond proceeds, does not exceed two percent of the 
sale proceeds. 



 -7-  
12917-0002\1807062v1.doc 

C. Review of Market Availability.  The designated officer or employee will ensure 
that the financial advisor reviews the market trading activity after their sale date but before their 
issuance date to determine whether the market pricing is consistent with the issue price reported 
by the underwriter or original purchaser as of their sale date.  Market trading information is 
generally available through the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board’s Electronic Municipal 
Market Access System (EMMA) (http://www.emma.msrb.org).  A record of such determination, 
including copies of the market trading information, will be maintained.  

D. Monitor Interest For Refundable Credit.  In the case of BABs or tax credit bonds, 
the designated officer or employee will monitor the amount of interest payable on each interest 
payment date to ensure that the proper amount of direct payment (refundable credit) is requested 
on each Form 8038-CP. 

E. Filing of 8038-CP.  In the case of BABs or tax credit bonds, the designated officer 
or employee will ensure that IRS Form 8038-CP is timely filed with respect to each interest 
payment date (or each quarter in the case of certain variable rate bond issues). 

F. Refundable Credit Payments to Proper Person.  In the case of BABs or tax credit 
bonds, if the direct payments (refundable credits) to be made by the federal government with 
respect to the bonds will be paid to a person other than the issuer (e.g., the bond trustee or the 
state or local government entity on whose behalf an authority issued the bonds, such as the 
California Statewide Communities Development Authority), the designated officer or employee 
will obtain and record the contact information of that person, and ensure that it is properly shown 
on Form 8038-CP so that the direct payment (refundable credit) will be made to the proper 
person. 

G. Follow-up on Two Percent Costs of Issuance Limitation.  In the case of BABs or 
tax credit bonds, in cooperation with the financial advisor, the designated officer or employee 
will ensure that no more than two percent of the sale proceeds are used to pay issuance costs. 

H. Available Project Proceeds.  In the case of BABs or tax credit bonds, the 
designated officer or employee will ensure that all of the sale proceeds and investment earnings, 
other than (i) sale proceeds used to pay issuance costs (up to the two percent limit described 
above) or (ii) deposited in a reasonably required reserve fund, are allocated to capital 
expenditures.  

 


	0 Agenda 06-22-2015
	3.1 Minutes 06-08-2015
	MINUTES
	1. PUBLIC BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR (No Action Can Be Taken):
	2. PRESENTATIONS:
	3. CONSENT CALENDAR:
	4. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: None.
	5. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING:   None.
	6. NEW BUSINESS:
	7. CORRESPONDENCE: NONE.
	8. COMMENTS:
	9. CLOSED SESSION TO DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING:  8:04 P.M
	10. REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION:
	No reportable action was taken.


	City of Hughson
	City Council Meeting
	City Hall Council Chambers

	3.1 Minutes SR Cover
	3.2 Cover Sheet - Warrant Register
	3.2 warrant list 6-22-15.v1
	3.3 Portfolio Investments Report-Apr 15 (1)1
	Sheet1

	3.3 Portfolio Investments-Apr 15
	Meeting Date:         June 22, 2015
	Subject: Approval of the Treasurer’s Report: Investment Portfolio Report – April 2015
	Presented By:  John Padilla, City Treasurer
	Approved By:         _______________________________
	Staff Recommendation:
	Review and approve the City of Hughson Treasurer's Report: Investment Portfolio Report for April 2015.
	Summary:
	The City Treasurer is required to review the City’s investment practices and approve the monthly Treasurer’s report. Enclosed is a summary of the City of Hughson’s Investment Portfolio for April 2015 and is provided as a supplementary document to the ...
	Background and Overview:
	The Investment Portfolio Report is intended to provide supplementary documentation of the City of Hughson’s investment practices. According to the City of Hughson’s Investment Policy, the City Treasurer shall submit to the City Council a quarterly inv...
	CITY OF HUGHSON AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.3
	SECTION 3: CONSENT CALENDAR
	According to Michael DeGeeter, the City’s MBS Account Executive, the City of Hughson utilizes a 5 year Certificate Deposit (CD) laddering approach for its investment practices.  This approach layers various CDs depending on interest rates and timing, ...
	Enclosed is the City of Hughson’s Treasurer’s Report: Investment Portfolio Report for April 2015 along with supplementary graphs depicting the percentage of the City’s portfolio of investments. After review and evaluation of the report, City staff sub...
	Rate of Return and Debt Repayment
	The rate of return for each investment has been included per City Council’s request.  Because each investment has a unique period of return, each corresponding rate of return reflects the time when they were purchased.  Furthermore, City staff is curr...
	Multi-Bank WWTP – Cash, Money, Funds, and Bank Deposits
	The Cash, Money, Funds, and Bank Deposits account reflects a balance of $8,351.94. As a result of the Doral Bank closures, the $200,000.00 was released to the Cash, Money, Funds, and Bank Deposits account.  Since then however, the $200,000.00 has been...
	L.A.I.F. Investments
	The reported Local Agency Investment Fund (L.A.I.F.) investments reflect the City’s most current balance statement as of April 15, 2015. The two L.A.I.F. accounts share a combined balance of $78,718.21, comprising of only 3.08% of the City’s total por...
	Fiscal Impact:
	As of April 2015, the total investments balance for the City of Hughson is $2,561,312.19 accounting for 21.06% of the City’s total cash and investments. The total cash and investment amount is $12,159,827.06. Of the amounts invested, 0.58% is invested...

	3.4 AED  Community Enhancement Funds SR
	3.5 2015 Investment Policy-Staff Report
	Meeting Date:         June 22, 2015
	Subject: City of Hughson’s 2014-2015 Investment Policy
	Presented By:  John Padilla, City Treasurer
	Approved By:         _______________________________
	Staff Recommendation:
	Consider the adoption of Resolution No. 2015-21a, approving the City of Hughson’s 2015-2016 Investment Policy.
	Summary:
	In accordance with the provisions of California Government Code Section 53646 and the City of Hughson’s Investment Policy, the Treasurer or Fiscal Officer of the City shall prepare and submit a Statement of Investment Policy to the City Council for th...
	Background and Overview:
	The proposed Investment Policy provides a guide and procedures for establishing and maintaining the City’s investments. The primary objectives of the City’s policy are, in priority of order: safety, liquidity, and return on investments.
	It is the policy of the City of Hughson to review and approve the City’s Investment Policy on an annual basis.  Any modifications to the Policy must be approved by the City Council.  The Investment Policy in review reflects the City of Hughson’s most ...
	Proposed Modifications:
	Since the Investment Policy was most recently modified and updated in 2014, there are only a few proposed modifications to the 2015-2016 Investment Policy.  Such modifications include the addition of the period in which the Investment Policy applies (...
	CITY OF HUGHSON AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.5
	SECTION 3: CONSENT CALENDAR
	Fiscal Impact:
	There is no direct fiscal impact of the policy however; it will provide a guide for prudently and safely investing the City’s funds.

	3.5 2015-2016 Investment Policy-edits
	GLOSSARY*

	6.1 Binder1 (1)
	page 1
	Draft Engineer's Report FY15-16_6.8.15

	6.1 LLD.BAD Intent to Levy_RESO
	6.1 LLD.BAD Intent to Levy_SR
	6.2 Hughson CC Stf Rpt 2015 Compliance Procedures 6 22 15
	6.2 Hughson Resolution Adopting Post Issuance Compliance Procedures  (Hughson) (3)
	6.2 Post Issuance Compliance Procedures (Hughson SA) (3)

